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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FREEE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of China Shenghai Group
Limited (the “Company” or “Shenghai”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”), | report to shareholders our annual
report for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year 2020" or
the “Year”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2020, affected by the outbreak of the 2019 coronavirus, the
world's economy was severely hit. The epidemic has greatly
changed the way of life of people in China and the world. Various
epidemic control measures have completely stopped the exchange
between all countries in the world. Even though China is the first
country in the world to get out of the haze of the epidemic, minor
outbreaks of the epidemic were still occurred repeatedly during
the year. Most cities still discourage mobility across provinces and
cities, and crowd control is still implemented in most public places,
such as large shopping malls and supermarkets which limits the
number of people in the premises. Affected by the uncertainty
of the epidemic, the general public tends to reduce unnecessary
expenditures, leading to further reductions in consumption.

Facing the severe challenges brought by the coronavirus epidemic,
coupled with the fact that seafood and algae are not essential
products, their demand has been greatly reduced, resulting in a
significant decline in the demand for the Group's products from the
Group's customers. In addition, in order to ensure the health and
safety of the Group's employees and customers, the Group has
suspended most of its product promotions during the year, which
directly affected the Group's turnover and performance. Dried
seafood products remained to be the major products of the Group,
however, its revenue has significantly decreased by approximately
65.6% to approximately RMB162.7 million in the year ended 31
December 2020 from approximately RMB472.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019. Gross profit of the Group fell by 70.4%
to approximately RMB30.7 million and the Group has recorded a
net loss of approximately RMB32.3 million during the Year.

In order to balance the business risks posed by a single business,
the Group launched the fast-moving consumer goods business
in early 2020, which mainly involves the sale of cosmetics,
daily necessities, fashion and accessories. For the year ended
31 December 2020, the Group's total transaction amount from
the fast-moving consumer goods business was approximately
RMB132.9 million, and have brought to the Group net income and
net profit of approximately RMB7.2 million and RMB3.2 million
respectively.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FREEE

OUTLOOK

Even though the COVID-19 pandemic has brought the biggest
challenge to the Group since its establishment, the Group believes
that the pandemic has brought challenges as well as opportunities.
The outbreak of the pandemic has accelerated and changed
people’s consumption habits, and e-commerce has become
the major way of daily consumption of the people. In addition,
the outbreak of the epidemic has also highlighted the business
risks brought about by oversimplification of business. In order to
maintain the financial strength and stable growth strategy in these
difficulties, the Group will actively change its existing to traditional
sales model and increase investment in the development of
e-commerce business. In addition, the Group will also further
expand its businesses other than food to diversify its sources
of income, and will spare no effort in seeking cooperation and
merger and acquisition opportunities for the Group to gain growth
momentum and make full use of the Company's financial strength.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my most sincere
gratitude to all the staff. | would also like to extend my gratitude to
our shareholders, investors, long-term customers and suppliers for
their continual devotion and consistent support. We will continue
to adhere to our initial vision and uphold the pragmatic operation
and positive approach to achieve development and actual results to
reward the trust from all of you.

China Shenghai Group Limited
Li Dongfan
Joint-Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

ESER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Rongru (2/&140) (“Mr. Liu"), aged 53, is our Chief
Executive Officer, Executive Director and the Joint-chairman of our
Board and is primarily responsible for development, positioning
and strategy planning of our Group. Mr. Liu is the founder of
our Group. He was appointed as a Director and Chief Executive
Officer on 8 January 2016 and 6 August 2019 respectively, and
redesignated as an Executive Director and Joint-chairman on
11 April 2016 and 14 January 2020 respectively. He is currently a
director of all subsidiaries of our Group. He is also a member of
our Remuneration Committee and the chairman of our Nomination
Committee.

In the earlier period of his career, Mr. Liu worked at Xiamen
Shipping Trading Limited (EPIA&EEME AR A7) in China from
August 1990 to August 1996, a company principally engaged in
shipping and trading, where he was primarily responsible for ship
steering and piloting. In October 1996, Mr. Liu started his own
business in trading marine product where he was primarily in
charge of the general operation of the business which allowed
him to input his trading experience into Xiamen Wofan upon its
establishment in July 2005.

Mr. Liu attended a course entitled “Contemporary CEOs’ Advance
Course (MR DELHESHAMIEI) " from October 2010 to
October 2011 at the School of Continuing Education, Tsinghua
University (JEZE KRS B S 2P ) . Mr. Liu has been appointed
a member of the 7th Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference at Xiamen Huli district (EFATHERFELtEBIHZE
&) since November 2011 and a member of the China Democratic
National Construction Association (FE R TZE &2 8) since
November 2010. Mr. Liu had also been appointed the first vice
president of the Association for New Social Stratum of Xiamen
Huli district (EFTEREEEFAOMEREATHEZI S R)
in December 2009, the executive committee of the 12th Xiamen
Federation of Commerce of Chamber (EFI™ TRl (EHEE)F
+—EHEEHZ)in December 2011, the standing committee
member of the 5th Xiamen Huli district Federation of Commerce
of Chamber (EFIT R IHE (M) FAEESERHKES)
in April 2012 and the supervisor of the third division of the Xiamen
Municipal Bureau of Quality and Technical Supervision ([ EFfiTE &
BIMEERE=ZS2RITAEES) in April 2015.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

ESER

Ms. Li Jiayin (Z{£3&) (“Ms. Li"), aged 37 is our Executive
Director. She was appointed as an Executive Director on
9 September 2019. She is primarily responsible for business
development, overall management and strategic planning of our
Group. Ms. Li graduated from Auckland University of Technology,
New Zealand with a bachelor’'s degree in finance in 2008. She
worked as the department head at Le Brun Peirse Limited from
2008 to 2012, and as a senior management at BP Oil Group in
2013. She joined Moody Group in 2014, and has been serving as
the regional head of Europe, North America and the chief executive
officer of Moody Group. From March 2018 to August 2018, she was
appointed as an executive director of Wang Tai Holdings Limited
(currently known as “Moody Technology Holdings Limited”)
(stock code: 1400) and she has been the acting chairlady of such
company from August 2018 to April 2019. Ms. Li is currently the
authorized representative of Shenzhen National Development Fund
Management Limited* CRIIBRELSEZEEMRAF]), a member
of the Asset Management Association of China* (1 EZ 5% & H
4 %1% &) and a Certified Financial Planner in China.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Li Dongfan (% /) (“Mr. Li"), aged 36. He was appointed
as our non-executive director and Joint-Chairman on 14 January
2020. He is primarily responsible to provide advice on the Group's
business development, management and strategic planning. Mr. Li
is an entrepreneur and he held a degree of Doctor of Philosophy
(Finance) granted by Brampton International University, Canada.
From November 2017 to July 2018, Mr. Li held various positions
of vice chairman, executive director and the joint-chairman of
the board of directors of Blockchain Group Company Limited, a
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (the “Stock
Exchange”) (Stock Code: 364). From April 2018 to August 2018,
Mr. Li served as the executive director and chairman of Moody
Technology Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 1400).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

ESER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Dajin (2/K#), aged 55, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 22 June 2017 Mr. Liu
Dajin is also a member of our Audit Committee, our Remuneration
Committee and our Nomination Committee. Mr. Liu Dajin has
been a practising member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since November 1996. Mr. Liu Dajin graduated
with a bachelor degree in economics (major in accounting) from
the Central University of Finance and Economics (F1 R EBF & A £2)
(originally named Central Institute of Finance and Banking (F4k
BB E R ERT)) in June 1989. He then obtained a postgraduate
qualification from the Xiamen University Postgraduate School in
September 1992. Mr. Liu Dajin worked as a teaching assistant at
the Jimei Finance and Economics School ( £ X4 (currently
known as: Finance & Economics Institute, Jimei Universityf£ 3 X
BB BB ) ) from August 1984 to August 1987 Mr. Liu Dajin then
served as the deputy director and an instructor at the Financial
Management Teaching and Research Centre (&I =) at
the Jimei College of Finance (S EH B EHEEIEZR (currently known
as: Finance & Economics Institute, Jimei University & 3< A 2284
BT ) ) from July 1989 to August 1995. Mr. Liu Dajin worked
in various faculties of the Jimei University (£33 K &) since
September 1995 and is currently the professor of the Faculty of
Management of the Chengyi University College, Jimei University
(EEKREHHFER) . Mr. Liu Dajin is currently the independent
non-exective director of Mobile Internet (China) Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1439), Xiamen
Xindeco Ltd., a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock
code: 000701.SZ) and Xiamen Zongheng Group Co., Ltd.

Mr. Liu Junting (£/£ &) (“Mr. Liu Junting”), aged 31, was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on 14 January
2020. He is a member of each of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Liu
Junting graduated from Beijing Institute of Technology in July
2013. Mr. Liu Junting is currently the assistant manager of Zhuhai
Lvzhou Industrial Limited. Since October 2019, Mr. Liu Junting
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of Moody
Technology Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 1400).

Mr. Pang Wai Ching (Z{& 1) (“Mr. Pang”), aged 32, was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on 19 October
2019. He is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Pang has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since March 2015. He obtained the
Bachelor degree of Business Administration in Accountancy from
City University of Hong Kong in July 2010. He has more than 10
years experience in accounting, auditing and company secretarial
matters. Currently, Mr. Pang is the Company Secretary of Xingfa
Aluminium Holdings Limited (stock code: 0098).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED T

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of China
Shenghai Food Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) is
pleased to announce the audited consolidated annual results of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Reporting Year”), together
with the comparative figures for the corresponding period in 2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group sells dried seafood, algae and fungi, and seafood snacks
in the PRC. The Group (i) sources high quality raw and processed
raw materials, (ii) sub-contracts processing of the unprocessed
raw materials to third parties, (i) packages products at its own
packaging facilities or through its sub-contractors, and (iv) sells
packaged products under its own brand “Wofan (JKZ) . The
Group also sells dried seafood, algae and fungi without packaging.
The Group also engaged in the sales of fast moving consumer
goods since early 2020.

The Group's revenue fell by approximately 65.6% to approximately
RMB162.7 million in the Reporting Period from approximately
RMB472.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. The
outbreak of the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19") epidemic
has caused serious damage to China's economy in 2020. The
GDP of China’s economy shrank by 6.8% yearon-year in the first
quarter of 2020, which was the first GDP decline since the official
record began in 1992. The Group's gross profit for the Reporting
Period also fell by 70.4% to approximately RMB30.7 million (year
ended 31 December 2019: approximately RMB103.8 million while
gross profit margin fell to 18.9% (year ended 31 December 2019:
21.9%). Due to the sharp decline in turnover and gross profit,
the Group recorded a loss for the first time since its listing of
approximately RMB32.3 million (year ended 31 December 2019:
profit of RMB30.8 million).

FOOD BUSINESS

The Group has a comprehensive product portfolio with different
raw materials, flavouring and packaging and considers each product
to be distinctive. The Group seeks to differentiate itself from its
competitors by providing a broad and convenient choice of safe and
quality products, which creates additional opportunities to drive the
overall sales. During the Reporting Period, the Group offered over
100 types of dried seafood, 30 types of algae and fungi, and 60
types of seafood snacks.

The Group's products are sold through supermarkets, trading
companies, convenience stores and other sales channels, such as
food companies, gift stores and e-commerce retailers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED T

As a result of the outbreak of the COVID-19 epidemic, a series
of precautionary and control measures have been implemented
across the PRC and the Group's operations have been seriously
affected. Consumers’ demand for the Group's products has fallen
further, leading to the Group's customers becoming more cautious
when placing orders with the Group. In addition, to ensure the
health and safety of employees and customers, the Group has
suspended most of the product promotion activities during the
year, which directly affected the turnover and results of our food
business. The Group's revenue from food business decreased by
approximately 67.1% from approximately RMB472.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB155.6 million
during the reporting period, and recorded a loss of approximately
RMB25.9 million (year ended 31 December 2019: profit of
approximately RMB51.0 million).

FAST MOVING CONSUMER GOODS AND OTHER BUSINESS
The Group has been actively studying the feasibility of stepping into
other industries, and spared no effort to actively seek cooperation
and merger and acquisition opportunities for the Group to obtain
growth momentum to make full use of the Company’s financial
strength. Taking into account the possible long-term impact of the
Sino-US trade war on China’s economy, coupled with the impact of
the COVID-19 epidemic, the Group believes that it should expand
more businesses other than food to balance its business risks. In
early 2020, the Group began our new fast moving consumer goods
business, which will mainly involve in the sales of cosmetics,
daily necessities, fashion and accessories. For the year ended
31 December 2020, the Group's fast moving consumer goods
business realised total transaction amount of approximately
RMB132.9 million and a net revenue of approximately RMB7.2
million and recorded a profit of approximately RMB3.2 million.

For the published Interim results for the six months ended
30 June 2020, the revenue in relation to fast moving consumer
goods business were recognised on gross basis. However, during
the audit for the year ended 31 December 2020, the auditors of
the Group considered the Group was acting agent instead of a
principal in the sales and purchase activities of such business and
therefore should recognise revenue on net basis. As a result, there
has been an overstatement of revenue and cost of sales amounted
RMB66.3 million and RMB66.3 million respectively for the six
months period ended. Such overstatement has been corrected for
the year ended 31 December 2020 by correcting each of the affect
financial statement line items.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
EEEWED T

OUTLOOK

Even though the COVID-19 pandemic has brought the biggest
challenge to the Group since its establishment, the Group believes
that the pandemic has brought challenges as well as opportunities.
The outbreak of the pandemic has accelerated and changed
people’s consumption habits, and e-commerce has become
the major way of daily consumption of the people. In addition,
the outbreak of the epidemic has also highlighted the business
risks brought about by oversimplification of business. In order to
maintain the financial strength and stable growth strategy in these
difficulties, the Group will actively change its existing to traditional
sales model and increase investment in the development of
e-commerce business. In addition, the Group will also further
expand its businesses other than food to diversify its sources
of income, and will spare no effort in seeking cooperation and
merger and acquisition opportunities for the Group to gain growth
momentum and make full use of the company’s financial strength.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the Year.

OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
REVENUE

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue decreased by
approximately 65.6% to approximately RMB162.7 million from
approximately RMB472.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2019, primarily due to decreases in both sales volume and average
selling prices.

The table below sets out a breakdown of the Group’s revenue
categorized by product types during the Reporting Year:

RE
AECOVID-19ORBERAAEBER T BKL
AR KBS B B AR BARERIF® K
B[R] B 7h s R M B IR B IR B
TARWMEBERE EBE—FIRAARR
FHEMNEE SR I REMBRE IR
BMTEBEDPE-—FSROEBRAR - ST
FELERFRRTVBEHMNBEL RO
B AEBSREGABRAEERBEERN
MARBEETERXRBER I AKETT
RE—FBARREmUINER  UZ KL
HUG AR I 45 A8 87 0 B TR 1% = Rk
BEAEHBRESEENSERD HER
DAARBOHBES -

BE HEIEDLHES

RAFE  ARA S EATA M E R R EE
B -hEXBRETMARRN EHES-

REEBER VK ERE

g &

RBEHN AEENKEHEBEZE_Z— N
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HEITR L 465.6%EHNARKI62.7EHE
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Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=1T—-HLFE

% to total % to total
2020 revenue 2019 revenue
HAEWEN Bl
—ECEF B2 (%) —E-NF B3 (%)
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AREFIT
Food business BmEX
Dried seafood B2 E M 88,018 54.1% 246,108 52.1%
Algae and fungi EFEQRREESR 62,755 38.6% 190,283 40.2%
Seafood snacks BFERBE & 4,780 2.9% 36,497 7.7%
Fast moving consumer REHERR
goods and other Hih
business 7,165 4.4% = N/AZ 3 FA
Total et 162,718 472,888
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
BB WED T

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

Gross profit represents our revenue less our cost of sales, and
our gross profit margin represents gross profit divided by revenue,
expressed as a percentage. The following table sets forth the gross
profit and gross profit margin by product category for the Reporting
Year:

EMREFNE

E M 5 Wk B 5H B AR - B A R EFEFIER A
W WBDHIIR TREINBREFA
WEMBRHETHNENREMNE:

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+—HLEE

Gross profit

Gross profit

2020 margin 2019 margin
=t LY ERE —T-AF =P
RMB’000 (%) RMB'000 (%)

AREFT T AREF T
Food business RmE® 23,551 15.1% 103,769 21.9%

Fast moving consumer RREE MR

goods and other business H bR 7,165 100% = N /A7 i@ A
Total st 30,716 18.9% 103,769 21.9%

The Group's gross profit margin was approximately 18.9%
and approximately 21.9% during the Reporting Year and for the
corresponding period of last year. The decrease in gross profit
margin was mainly due to the decrease in average selling prices
during the year.

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET

Other income represents rental income generated from the
seaweed farms located in Xiapu, the PRC and interest income from
bank deposits and secured loan receivable.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consist of salaries and
employee benefit expenses for employees engaging in the sales
and promotion activities, transportation expenses, advertising
and promotion expenses, rental expenses and other expenses.
As a percentage of revenue, our selling and distribution expenses
amounted to approximately 22.0% and 9.2% for the year ended
31 December 2020 and 2019, respectively. This increase was
primarily due to the decrease in revenue of the Group during the
Reporting Year.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses primarily consist of salaries and
employees benefit expenses, rental expenses, office expenses,
depreciation and others. As a percentage of revenue, our
administrative expenses increased from approximately 3.0% for
the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately 11.8% for the
Reporting Year, mainly due to the decrease in revenue of the Group
during the Reporting Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
BB WED T

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Income tax expense primarily consists of Enterprise Income Tax
of Xiamen Wofan Foodstuffs Company Limited and Fujian Wofan
Foodstuffs Company Limited, the applicable tax rate of which being
25%. For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, income tax
expense were approximately RMB1.9 million and RMB15.2 million,
respectively.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), we are not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands or the BVI.

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as the Group had no
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURES

CASH FLOWS

During the Reporting Year, the Group funded its working capital
and other capital requirements principally by cash generated from
our operating activities and the net proceeds from initial public
offering.

NET CURRENT ASSETS

Net current assets decreased from approximately RMB404.3
million as at 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB391.7 million
as at 31 December 2020. The decrease was primarily attributable
to an increase in inventories and cash and cash equivalents and
decrease in trade payables.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AND BANK BORROWINGS
During the Reporting Year, the Group maintained a healthy liquidity
position. As at 31 December 2020, cash and cash equivalents of
the Group was approximately RMB213.5 million, as compared to
approximately RMB242.6 million as at 31 December 2019 and the
Group has no bank borrowings.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2020, the gearing ratio (calculated by total debt
divided by the total equity as at the end of the year) was 0.040
(31 December 2019: 0.009).

INVENTORIES

As at 31 December 2020, inventories amounted to approximately
RMB75.5 million (2019: approximately RMB79.1 million). The
number of inventory turnover days was approximately 214 days
(2019: 74 days).

TRADE RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2020, trade receivables amounted to
approximately RMB133.5 million (2019: approximately RMB102.3
million). The Group granted its customers a credit period of 30 to
120 days following the day of delivery. The number of turnover
days for trade receivables was approximately 264 days (2019:
approximately 82 days).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED T

TRADE PAYABLES

As at 31 December 2020, trade payables amounted to
approximately RMB16.4 million (2019: approximately RMB8.7
million). The Group managed to obtain a credit period of an average
of 30-60 days from the majority of its suppliers.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's capital
expenditure amounted to approximately RMB72 million (Year
ended 31 December 2019: approximately RMB5.0 million).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not pledge any assets.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED
COMPANIES

There was no significant investment, material acquisition and
disposal of subsidiaries by the Company during the Reporting
Year. The Group currently has no plan to make any substantial
investment in or acquisition of capital assets, but will continue to
seek for potential investment or acquisition opportunities according
to the Group’s development needs.

EXCHANGE RISK EXPOSURE

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and most of its operating
transactions are settled in RMB. Most of its assets and liabilities
are denominated in RMB. Although the Group may be exposed
to foreign currency exchange risks, the Board does not expect
future currency fluctuations to materially impact the Group's
operations. The Group did not adopt formal hedging policies and
no instruments have been applied for foreign currency hedging
purposes during the Reporting Year.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 486 full time employees
in total (31 December 2019: 554). The Group remunerates its
employees based on their performance, experience and prevailing
industry practice. Competitive remuneration package is offered
to retain elite employees. The package includes salaries, medical
insurance, discretionary bonuses, other benefits as well as
mandatory provident fund schemes for employees in Hong Kong
and state-managed retirement benefit schemes for employees in
the PRC.

FINAL DIVIDEND
The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020 to the shareholders.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The Directors is pleased to present its report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
those of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
Note 25 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group's turnover and results by business
segments for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out in note
6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

RESULT AND APPROPRIATION

The Group's financial information for the year ended 31 December
2020 and the financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2020 are set out in the consolidated financial statements from
pages 47 to 123.

No dividend has been declared or proposed by the Directors in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business, financial key performance indicators and
outlook of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion
and Analysis on pages 4 to 5 and pages 9 to 14 of this annual
report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

[t is our corporate and social responsibility in promoting a
sustainable and environmental friendly environment. We strive to
minimise our environmental impact by saving electricity and to
build our Group in a sustainable way.

We have adopted a set of emergency planning, response
and control procedures as countermeasures for unexpected
environmental pollution accidents to minimise our impact on the
environment and the adverse effect on our business.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute
dividends to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
to allow Shareholders to share the Company’s profits and for the
Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject
to the absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of
final dividend will be subject to the approval of the Shareholders.
In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into
account, inter alia, the Group's financial results, the general
financial condition of the Group, the Group's current and future
operations, the level of the Group's debts to equity ratio, return
on equity and the relevant financial covenants, liquidity position
and capital requirement of the Group, surplus received from the
Company's subsidiaries and any other factors that the Board
deem appropriate. The Company’'s ability to pay dividends is
also subject to the requirements of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and all relevant applicable laws,
rules and regulations in the Cayman Islands, Hong Kong and the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company. The
Company does not have any pre-determined distribution ratio. The
Group's dividend distribution record in the past may not be used
as a reference or basis to determine the amount of dividends that
may be declared or paid by the Company in the future.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend
and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend
Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by
the Company that dividends will be paid in any particular amount
and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any
time or from time to time.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, as far as the Company is aware, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations by our Group that has a significant impact on the
business and operations of our Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is exposed to the operational risk in relation to the
business of the Group. With the growth and expansion of our
operations, the potential risks to our business increase as
well. In order to identify, assess and control the risks that may
create impediments to our success, we have implemented a
risk management system that covers each material aspect of
our operations, including financial security, production, logistics,
technology and compliance. As our risk management is a
systematic project, each of our departments is responsible for
identifying and evaluating the risks relating to its area of operations.
Our Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing, assessing
and reviewing our risk management policy and supervising the
performance of our risk management system.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

EMPLOYEES

The Company recognizes that employees are our valuable assets.
Thus our Group provide competitive remuneration package to
attract and motivate the employees. Our Group regularly reviews
the remuneration package of employees and make necessary
adjustment to conform to the market standard.

SUPPLIERS

We have developed long-standing relationships with a number of
our suppliers and conducts a fair and strict appraisal on an annual
basis.

CUSTOMERS

We are committed to provide our customers with high quality
products and deliver on a timely basis. We also stay connected
with our customers to keep abreast of the changing customer
preference through regular visits of our sales teams.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
on page 47.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five financial years is set out on page 124 of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 23 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2020 are set out in the consolidated statements of
changes in equity on page 49 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company's reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles of Association”), amounted
to approximately RMB85.1 million (as at 31 December 2019:
approximately RMB92.7 million).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group's largest and five largest customers accounted
for approximately 8.9% and 36.8% of the total turnover for the
year 2020 respectively. Purchases from the Group’s largest and
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 14.7% and
44.6% of the total purchases for the year 2020 respectively.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the Directors, their
associates, nor any shareholders who owned more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital, had any beneficial interest in any
of the Group's five largest customers or suppliers during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
Note 25 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during
the year are set out in Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS
During the year, the Group did not made charitable contributions
(2019: Nil).
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS
The Directors of the Company who hold office during the year and
up to the date of this report are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Rongru (Joint-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(redesignated as Joint-Chairman on 14 January 2020)

Ms. Li Jiayin

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Li Dongfan (Joint-Chairman)
(appointed on 14 January 2020)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Liu Dajin

Mr. Chen Sze Hung (resigned on 14 January 2020)
Mr. Pang Wai Ching

Mr. Liu Junting (appointed on 14 January 2020)

None of the Directors, including those proposed for re-election at
the AGM, has a service agreement which is not terminable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

The Company has received confirmation on independence from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and all of them are considered to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference to
Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results
of the Group.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in Note 12
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the Directors of the Group are disclosed
in the section headed “Biographical Details of the Directors” on
pages 6 to 8 of this annual report.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

The controlling shareholders of the Company entered into a Deed
of Non-Competition in favour of the Company dated 22 June
2017 (“Deed of Non-Competition”) as set out in the section
of “Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders” under
the Prospectus. The controlling shareholders confirmed their
compliance of all the undertakings provided under the Deed of
Non-Competition.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries or associated companies by
the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a resolution passed by all the shareholders on
22 June 2017 the Company has conditionally adopted the share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose
of recognizing and acknowledging the contributions the eligible
participants had or may have made to the Group. The Board may, at
its discretion, grant options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme
to the Directors (including Executive Directors, Non-executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors), the directors
of the Company's subsidiaries and employees of the Group and
any other persons (including consultants or advisers) whom the
Board considers, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or
will contribute to the Group. The Directors were authorised to
grant options to subscribe for shares of the Company and to allot,
issue and deal with the shares pursuant to the exercise of options
granted under the Share Option Scheme and to take all such steps
as may be necessary and/or desirable to implement and give effect
to the Share Option Scheme. The maximum number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and under any other share option schemes of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number
of shares in issue immediately following completion of the Global
Offering (as defined in the Company’s prospectus dated 30 June
2017), being 100,000,000 shares, excluding any shares that may
be issued under the options which have lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme (or any other share option
schemes of the Company), unless otherwise approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting and/or such other
requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time.
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Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting, the number of shares that may be granted to an
eligible participant under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including both exercised
and outstanding options) shall not exceed 1% of the shares in
issue of the Company within any 12-month period. Any grant of
options to a Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) is required
to be approved by our Independent Non-executive Directors.
Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting and/or such other requirements prescribed under
the Listing Rules, the number of shares that may be granted to a
substantial shareholder or any Independent Non-executive Director
or their respective associates under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company (including
both exercised and outstanding options) shall not exceed 0.1% of
the shares in issue, having an aggregate value in excess of HK$5
million, within any 12-month period.

There is no minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised, and the period during which an option
may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, however, no options shall be exercised 10 years after
they have been ranted. The subscription price of a share in respect
of a particular option shall be not less than the highest of (a) the
official closing price of the shares on the daily quotation sheet of
the Stock Exchange; (b) the average official closing price of the
shares on the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c)
the nominal value of a share. The Share Option Scheme shall take
effect from the date it is adopted and shall remain effective within
a period of 10 years from that date.

From the date that the Share Option Scheme became effective and
unconditional and up to the date of this annual report, no share
options were granted under the Share Option Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at the date of this annual report, the Directors of the Company
had the following interests in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company, its Group members and/or associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to
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be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to E’Jﬁuaﬁi@ﬁﬁ’i SPRIZE A E AR A F) K
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code: R FfT:
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares Interest (%)
FREA
ESHE B EatE BRHEE A2 (%)
Mr. Liu Rongru Interest in controlled corporation/
Long position (Note) 525,000,000 52.5%
EIES e REflEEOEETe ()
Note: B &

The entire issued share capital of Precisely Unique Limited is legally and beneficially
owned by Mr. Liu Rongru, who is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Precisely Unique Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report, none
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company had any
other interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company, any of its Group members or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model
Code.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at the date of this annual report, the following persons/entities
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) had,
or were deemed to have, interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company, its Group members and/or
associated corporations which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:
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Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest shares Interest (%)
BHEREN

RER %A B EntE K& & E B2 (%)
Precisely Unique Limited Beneficial Owner (Note 1) 525,000,000 52.5%
HEAFRAA) EmEAA (M31)
Mr. Liu Rongru Interest in controlled corporation/

Long position (Note 1) 525,000,000 52.5%
ey ub S TEtlEEOER TA (M)
Ms. Lin Yueying Interest of spouse (Note 2) 525,000,000 52.5%
MARRZ+ i B (MEE2)
Notes: B 5

1. The entire issued share capital of Precisely Unique Limited is legally and
beneficially owned by Mr. Liu Rongru, who is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Precisely Unique Limited.

2. Ms. Lin Yueying is the spouse of Mr. Liu Rongru and is deemed or taken to be
interested in all the Shares in which Mr. Liu Rongru has interest under the SFO.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The articles of associations of the Company provides that the
Directors shall be indemnified out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty,
in their respective offices or trusts.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance which provides appropriate cover for the Directors and
directors of the subsidiaries of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'S
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or its
subsidiaries was a party and in which the controlling Shareholder
or a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, there were no connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions between the Group and its
connected persons (as defined under the Listing Rules) which
are subject to the reporting, announcement and the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under the Listing Rules.

The material related party transactions as disclosed in Note 28 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements are connected transactions
exempt from reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates, has
engaged in any business that competes or may compete with the
business of the Group, or has any other conflict of interest with
the Group.

PURCHASES, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem any of its listed securities, and
neither did the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year and up to
the date of this report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules as at
the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to adopt corporate governance
practice. The Company's corporate governance practices are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 26 to 40.

AUDITORS

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended
31 December 2020 have been audited by BDO Limited which
retires, and being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the
AGM. A resolution to re-appoint BDO Limited and to authorize the
Directors to fix its remuneration will be proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Rongru

Executive Director

Xiamen, the PRC, 29 March 2021
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The Board is committed to maintaining a good standard of
corporate governance practices and business ethics in the firm
belief that they are essential for maintaining and promoting
investors’ confidence and maximizing shareholders’ returns. The
Board reviews its corporate governance practices from time to
time in order to meet the rising expectations of shareholders and
comply with the increasingly stringent regulatory requirements,
and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

The Company has adopted the code provisions in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance. The
Board considers that up to the date of this report, the Company
has complied with the CG Code except the following deviations:

Under the code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code, the Board should
meet regularly and the board meetings should be held at least four
times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, the Board held three Board meetings.
The significant matters concerning the business activities and
operation of the Group had been either duly reported, discussed
and resolved at the three Board meetings or dealt with by the
Board by way of written resolutions for expeditious commercial
decisions making purposes.

Code provision A.2.1 of the Code, which stipulates that the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separated. The
joint-chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company
is Mr. Liu Rongru. Nevertheless, the Board considers that this
structure will not impair the balance of power and the authority of
the Board. The Board currently comprises two executive Directors,
one non-executive Director and three independent non-executive
Directors, with independent non-executive Directors representing
half of the Board. Such percentage of independent non-executive
Directors on the Board can ensure their views carry significant
weight and reflect the independence of the Board. Mr. Liu Rongru
is the founder of the Group and he is responsible for the overall
strategic planning and management of the Group. He has played
an important role during the Group's expansion. Mr. Liu Rongru has
extensive experience in the seafood industry, having been engaged
in the seafood business for over 20 years. At present, the Board
believes that it is beneficial to the management and development
of the Group’s businesses for Mr. Liu Rongru to be both the
chairman and chief executive officer as it helps to facilitate the
Board's decision-making.
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Code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code requires the chairman of the
board to invite the chairmen of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and any other committees
(as appropriate) to attend the annual general meeting. In their
absence, he should invite another member of the Committee or
failing this his duly appointed delegate, to attend. Due to other
business commitments, the chairmen and members of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
of the Company could not attend the annual general meeting of
the Company held in May 2020.

Code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code requires that the chairman of
the Board shall at least annually hold meetings with Independent
Non-executive Directors without the presence of other Directors.
As Mr. Liu Rongru serves as the Joint-Chairman and Executive
Director concurrently, the code provision does not apply and
the Company deviates from such code provision. In addition,
the Chairman of the Board is of the view that, the Independent
Non-executive Directors can express their opinions to all Executive
Directors more directly and effectively at the Board meetings,
hence the Board is of the view that the deviation from the code
provision does not have material impact on the operation of the
Board.

The Company will continue to enhance its corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business
and to review its corporate governance practices from time to time
to ensure they comply with the evolving regulatory requirements
and to meet the rising expectations of the shareholders and other
stakeholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(A) BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities and Delegation
The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company, overseeing the Group's businesses, strategic
decisions, internal control, risk management systems and
monitoring the performance of the senior management. The
management is responsible for the daily operations of the
Group under the leadership of the Chairman. The Directors
have the responsibility to act objectively in the interests of
the Company.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the
Board committees including the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.
Further details of these Committees are set out below in
section B of this corporate governance report.
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Board Composition
The Board members during the year ended 31 December
2020 and up to the date of this report are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Liu Rongru (Joint-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(redesignated as Joint-Chairman on 14 January 2020)

Ms. Li Jiayin
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

Mr. Li Dongfan (Joint-Chairman)
(appointed on 14 January 2020)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Liu Dajin
Mr. Chen Sze Hung (resigned on 14 January 2020)

Mr. Pang Wai Ching
Mr. Liu Junting (appointed on 14 January 2020)

The Board currently comprises two Executive Directors,
one Non-executive Director and three Independent
Non-executive Directors from different business and
professional fields. The profiles of each Director are set out
in the “Biographical Details of Directors” section in this
annual report. The Directors, including the Independent
Non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum
of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
delivery of the Board functions.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
which sets out the approach to achieve a sustainable and
balanced development of the Company and to enhance the
quality of performance of the Company. The Policy aims at
achieving diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives and Selection

In designing the Board's composition, a number of
perspectives which include race, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, industry experience, technical
and professional experience, knowledge, skills, length of
service, personal integrity and time commitments of the
proposed candidates will be taken into consideration. The
Company will also take into account factors relating to its
own business model and specific needs from time to time.
The ultimate decision is based on merit and contribution
that the candidates will bring to the Board. Candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Board currently consists of one female member. The
Board will take opportunity to increase the proportion of
female members over time when selecting and making
recommendation on suitable candidates for Board
appointments. The Board would ensure that appropriate
balance of gender diversity is achieved with reference
to stakeholders’ expectation and international and local
recommended best practices, with the ultimate goal of
bringing the Board to gender parity. The Board also aspires
to having an appropriate proportion of Directors who have
direct experience in the Group's core markets, with different
ethnic backgrounds, and reflecting the Group's strategy.

Implementation and Monitoring

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation
of the board diversity policy and report to the Board
annually.

The Company has received annual confirmation from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors of his/
her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent.
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Board Meetings

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly at least four
times a year at approximately quarterly intervals, to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial
performance of the Group. Ad-hoc meetings will also be
convened when necessary. Such Board meetings involve
the active participation, either in person or through other
electronic means of communication, of a majority of
Directors.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate,
complete and reliable information will be provided to all
the Directors before meetings. All the Directors will be
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties,
and, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. All Directors
will have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda
for board meetings. The Company Secretary of the Company
is responsible to keep the minutes of board meetings and
meetings of Board committees. All minutes are open for
inspection by any Director at reasonable time on reasonable
notice.

During the year and up to the date of this annual report,
five Board meetings have been held, at which the Directors
approved the interim results of the Group for the six months
ended 30 June 2020 and the annual results of the Group for
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, reviewed the
results announcements and interim and annual reports and
resolved other business matters.

The Company’s Articles of Association contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to
be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such Directors or any of their
associates have a material interest. According to current
Board practices, any material transaction, which involves
a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a
Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a
duly convened Board meeting.
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Appointments, Re-election and Removal of Directors
Each of the Executive Directors and Non-executive Director
has entered into a service contract with the Company for
an initial fixed term of three years commencing from their
respective appointment dates renewable automatically
until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either party on the other expiring at the
end of the initial term or any time thereafter. All of their
appointments are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association of
the Company.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has
entered into a letter of appointment with our Company
on their respective appointment dates. Each letter of
appointment is for an initial term commencing on the date
of the letter of appointment and shall continue thereafter
subject to a maximum of three years unless terminated by
either party giving at least one month’s notice in writing.
All of their appointments are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.

All Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the
reappointments/appointments of both the Executive
Directors, the Non-executive Director and the Independent
Non-executive Directors and recommended to the Board for
decision.

Training Induction and Continuing Development of
Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of
the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company.

Each newly appointed Director will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of director's responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors are continually updated on developments in
the statutory and regulatory regime and the business
environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has since 22 June 2017 adopted the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules. Following a specific enquiry, all the
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code during the year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on
22 June 2017 with written terms of reference in compliance
with paragraph A.5.2 of the Code Provisions. Its terms of
reference are available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board
on regular basis; to identify individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members; to assess the independence
of Independent Non-executive Directors; and to make
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors. The
Nomination Committee comprises two Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Dajin and Mr. Liu
Junting and one Executive Director, namely Mr. Liu Rongru
(Chairman).

Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy for
the Nomination Committee to consider and make
recommendations to Shareholders for election as Directors
at general meetings or appoint as Directors to fill casual
vacancies.
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Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by
the Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate:

(1) reputation for integrity;

(2) accomplishment and experience in the business in
which the Group is engaged in;

(3) commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest;
(4) diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited

to race, gender, age (18 years or above), educational
background, professional experience, skills and length
of service;

(5) qualifications which include professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that
are relevant to the Company's business and corporate

strategy,

(6) the number of existing directorships and other
commitments that may demand the attention of the
candidate;

(7) requirement for the Board to have Independent

Non-executive Directors in accordance with the
Listing Rules and whether the candidates would
be considered independent with reference to the
independence guidelines set out in Rules 3.08, 3.09
and 3.13 of the Listing Rules;

(8) Board Diversity Policy of the Company and any
measurable objectives adopted by the Nomination
Committee for achieving diversity on the Board; and

(9) such other perspectives appropriate to the Company's
business.
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Director Nomination Procedure

Subject to the provisions in the Articles of Association of
the Company and the Listing Rules, if the Board recognises
the need for an additional Director or a member of senior
management, the following procedure will be followed:

(M

The Nomination Committee and/or Board will identify
potential candidates based on the criteria as set out
in the selection criteria, possibly with assistance from
external agencies and/or advisors;

The Nomination Committee and/or the Company
Secretary of the Company will then provide the
Board with the biographical details and details of the
relationship between the candidate and the Company
and/or Directors, directorships held, skills and
experience, other positions which involve significant
time commitment and any other particulars required
by the Listing Rules, the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands and other regulatory requirements
for any candidate for appointment to the Board;

The Nomination Committee would then make
recommendation to the Board on the proposed
candidate(s) and the terms and conditions of the
appointment;

The Nomination Committee should ensure that the
proposed candidate(s) will enhance the diversity
of the Board, being particularly mindful of gender
balance;

In the case of the appointment of an Independent
Non-executive Director, the Nomination Committee
and/or the Board should obtain all information
in relation to the proposed Director to allow the
Board to adequately assess the independence of
the Director in accordance with the factors set out
in Rules 3.08, 3.09 and 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
subject to any amendments as may be made by the
Stock Exchange from time to time; and

The Board will then deliberate and decide on the
appointment based upon the recommendation of the
Nomination Committee.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 22 June
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.21 and Rule 3.22 of the Listing Rules. The written
terms of reference of the Audit Committee was adopted
in compliance with paragraph C3.3 to C3.7 of the Code
Provisions. Its terms of reference are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee, among other
things, are to make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external
auditors, review the financial statements and provide
material advice in respect of financial reporting and oversee
the internal control and risk management procedures of the
Company. As at the date of this annual report, the Audit
Committee consists of three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Pang Wai Ching (Chairman), Mr. Liu
Dajin and Mr. Liu Junting.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company's
financial statements and the Group's consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, including
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Company and the Group.

During the year, two meetings have been held by the Audit
Committee. At such meetings, it reviewed the interim
results of the Group for the six months ended 30 June
2020. It also reviewed the annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2019 with the independent
auditors and the activities of the Group's internal control and
risk management functions. It also reviewed the Company's
progress in implementing the corporate governance
requirements as set out in the CG Code.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on
22 June 2017 with written terms of reference in compliance
with Rule 3.25 and Rule 3.26 of the Listing Rules. The
written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
was adopted in compliance with paragraph B1.2. of the
Code Provisions. Its terms of reference are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are
to make recommendation to the Board on the overall
remuneration policy and structure relating to all Directors
and senior management of the Group and to ensure none
of the Directors determine their own remuneration. The
emoluments of Executive Directors are determined based
on their skills, knowledge, individual performance as well as
contributions, the scope of responsibility and accountability
of such Directors, taking into consideration the Company's
performance and the prevailing market conditions. The
remuneration policy of Independent Non-executive Directors
is to ensure that they are adequately compensated for their
efforts and time dedicated to the Company's affairs including
their participation in their respective Board committees.
The emoluments of Independent Non-executive Directors
are determined with reference to their skills, experience,
knowledge, duties and market trends. As at the date of this
annual report, the Remuneration Committee consists of two
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Dajin
(Chairman) and Mr. Liu Junting and one Executive Director,
namely Mr. Liu Rongru.
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Details of remuneration of Directors are set out in Note 12
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

During the year and up to the date of this annual report,
six meetings have been held to review the remuneration
packages paid to Directors and senior management for
the financial year and the remuneration of new Directors

appointed.

The attendance of individual members of the Board and
other Board Committees meetings during the year is set out

in the table below:
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Meeting attended/held

HE/B78%
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Meeting Committee Committee Committee
Exg ERZEE FMZEEE REZ8E
Executive Directors YTES
Mr. Liu Rongru (Joint-Chairman and NEMEE (BELE
Chief Executive Officer) %m& fﬁz?f‘é)
(redesignated as Joint-Chairman (R=Z2-ZF-A
on 14 January 2020) TRERTEEREER) 6/7 N/ATER 3/3 3/3
Ms. Li Jiayin FEEHT 717 N/A &R N/A FE A N/A FER
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr. Li Dongfan (Joint-Chairman) i%ﬂf‘ﬁi( {ELE)
(appointed on 14 January 2020) (RZZ2-ZF
—AtHBEZT) 6/7  N/ATER N/A FER N/A T &
Independent BUFHTES
Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Liu Dajin ARERE 6/7 2/2 3/3 3/3
Mr. Chen Sze Hung BETEEE (RZE-FF
(resigned on 14 January 2020) —ATMBEEE) N/A FE A N/A 7 A N/A T & A N/A FER
Mr. Liu Junting AEEEE (K28
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and Auditors’ Acknowledgement

The Audit Committee and the Board have reviewed the
Group's consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020. The Directors acknowledge
their responsibilities for preparing accounts, the financial
statements, performance position and prospects of
the Group. Management has provided information and
explanation to the Board to enable it to make an informed
assessment of the financial and other information put before
the Board for approval. The Directors believed that they
have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgment and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to the events or conditions which may cast significant doubt
over the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
Accordingly, the Board has continued to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

The accounts for the year were audited by BDO Limited
whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

Auditor’s Remuneration
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the analysis of the
remuneration of the Company’s auditor, BDO Limited, paid/
payable is set out below:
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Audit services

The Audit Committee will recommend the reappointment of
BDO Limited for audit service, and consider the engagement
of the non-audit services to ensure the independence and
objectivity of audit service.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for the internal control
and risk management systems of the Company. Internal
controls and risk management are used by the Board to
facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of operations,
safeguard the investment of Shareholders and assets of the
Company and to ensure compliance with relevant statutory
and regulatory requirements. The Company’s internal control
and risk management policies are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatements and help the Board identify and mitigate, but
not eliminate, risk exposure. The policies and procedures
of internal controls (which include financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management systems)
are considered to be adequate and effective based on the
annual review conducted by the Board through the Audit
Committee.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company has established and maintained procedures
and internal controls for the handling and dissemination
of inside information. The Company has adopted a code
of conduct for dealing in the securities of the Company by
the Directors in accordance with Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules. Other employees of the Group who are likely to be
in possession of inside information of the Company are
also subject to dealing restrictions. Any inside information
and any information which may potentially constitute inside
information is promptly identified, assessed and escalated
to the Board and for the Board to decide on the need for
disclosure. Inside information and other information which
is required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules
will be announced on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company in due course.

In light of the size and scale of the Group’'s businesses,
the Group currently does not have an internal audit
department. The Board will review and consider to establish
such department as and when it thinks necessary. As
such, the Board, supported by the Audit Committee, is
directly responsible for risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and for reviewing its
effectiveness. In order to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance, the Company engaged an external
independent consultant with professional staff in possession
of relevant expertise to assist in identifying and assessing
the risks of the Group through a series of interviews; and
independently perform internal control review and assess
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems. The results of the independent review and
assessment have been reported to the Audit Committee
and the Board. The improvement of the systems of risk
management and internal control is an ongoing process and
the Board maintains a continuing commitment to strengthen
the Company’s control environment and processes. Based
on the findings and recommendations of the report as
well as the comments of the Audit Committee, the Board
considered the internal control and risk management
systems effective and adequate.

HETEREARAR | T _TFFERE

(D)

EREERAHEE
E=gHARANARERLARE

@%L%W%EME E=gMAA
MEELREBRERRRETEERLER
R g %Eh%&ﬁ&K AEE"
M&ﬁ%?Aﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁi

RABMATEENEREEBR S
EﬁL%EﬁﬁkﬁLﬁhm@ﬁ#
BEHNREF ARBBHEZ SRR X

BEEIEGRRR - BREEELEB
EXLZEE ﬁﬁZifﬁﬁ 7 6 25
(B EY%. é@&Aﬁ FEZ
EENMEAREERERR)BERAERH
KRB

A B H B R TR E

ARACRYIHFREREEANE
HEMREFRAMEZ - ARFER
EEMRAMBE+RANESEE
ﬁ%%Zﬁﬁ?%°$%@ﬁ
BEARANBBEENEE?
ﬁ%i%@ﬂ°&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%
%&W%%EWE@EH%WH&U
Y FREEe ABREESRE
ERBATHRE -ARHBEEREMRE
J:m%ﬁﬁljx,\%ﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬂ'ﬂ—}ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ

H

Sr/

m@m
JWJ%
BB

dﬂ

RETRARA)E B HEu E R
ERNAEEEB 2 ABRER K~
BRI EANSESHLMP - EESH
SHEERNTTRERBETEREZE
BB - A EESEEZ
ZESZH TEEEBEAR TZH
BEBEMAEE RS WA E®RS
E AR o ﬁTﬁﬁm*iWi%Em‘
ARRERET —HEERBEEENG

MEXABRINEF R BB —
R 5 ah ok 1 B R e RE A AR SR E Ay
R - 08 7 1T R EREE R AR AT R R
ity 7 &= [ /2 EE&W%WTgﬁZ
WK - 5 BB SR T R S 2 4
EREZZEERERS °&%@ﬁ
BN AMEIE RS B EER
S TEH RN RICARBNEE
REREF REBREAENEIR L
EHEAMNECZZEG ER EFS
RENBEERRAREERRTZA
MHE R -

China Shenghai Group Limited | Annual Report 2020

38



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(E)

(F)

DL

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Board appoints its Company Secretary in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association and in
compliance with the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Company Secretary has complied with the professional
training requirement as set out in the Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2020.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Board welcomes shareholders to present their views
and shareholders may at any time submit their questions
and concerns about the Group. Enquiries may be put
to the Board or senior management by contacting the
Company Secretary through our shareholders’ email at
investors@chinashenghaigroup.com or by phone at 852-3702
6977 or directly by raising questions at the general meetings
of the Company.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of Company’s
paid up capital may request the Board to convene an
extraordinary general meeting. The objects of the meeting
must be stated in the related requisition deposited at the
Company'’s registered office and addressing to the Company
Secretary at the Company's principal place of business in
Hong Kong. The extraordinary general meeting will be held
within two months after the deposition of such requisition.

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at general meetings, including the election of individual
Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted
on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will
be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange after each general meeting.

Any Shareholder may appoint a proxy or representative to
attend the general meeting, and they are entitled to exercise
the same voting rights in the meeting.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication
with shareholders is essential for enhancing investor
relations and investor understanding of the Group's
business performance and strategies. To promote effective
communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.chinashenghaigroup.com, where up-to-date
information and updates on the Company's business
operations and developments, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are
posted.

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue
with its shareholders and in particular, through AGMs
or other general meetings to communicate with the
shareholders. Shareholders are encouraged to participate in
general meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at
meetings for and on their behalf.

The forthcoming AGM of the Company will be held in May
2020. The notice of AGM will be sent to shareholders at
least 20 clear business days before the AGM.

Constitutional Documents

The latest version of the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company is posted on the Company’s
website.
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BYRBAEIRES

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA SHENGHAI GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Shenghai Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 47 to 123, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020 and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKASs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the "Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matter are those matter that, in our professional
judgment, was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Refer to summary of significant accounting policies in Note 4
and disclosure of revenue in Note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group is principally engaged in the sales of dried seafood,
algae and fungi, seafood snacks and procurement and sales of fast
moving consumer goods and others.
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REVENUE RECOGNITION - continued

Revenue represents income from sales of dried seafood, algae
and fungi and seafood snacks sourced from Mainland China, which
amounted to RMB155,553,000 for the year ended 31 December
2020, and procurement and sales of fast moving consumer goods
to customers in South Korea and others in Hong Kong, which
amounted to RMB7,165,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Group enters into sale and purchase agreements with the
distributors, supermarkets and other customers. In accordance
with the terms of the agreements, revenue from sales of dried
seafood, algae and fungi and seafood snacks is recognised when
control of good is transferred to the customers of the Group and
revenue from procurement and sale of fast moving consumer
goods and others is recognised when the goods being procured for
the customers are shipped to the customers.

We identified revenue recognition as a key audit matter because
revenue is one of the key performance indicators of the Group
and therefore there is an inherent risk of manipulation of the
recognition of revenue by management to meet specific targets or
expectations.

OUR RESPONSE
Our procedures in relation to assess the recognition of revenue
included the following:

e obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of key internal
controls which govern revenue recognition;

e inspecting sale and purchase agreements, on a sample basis,
to understand the terms of delivery and terms of services,
assess whether management recognised the related revenue
in accordance with the Group's accounting policies, with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

e comparing sales records for a sample of sales transactions
recorded during the year with relevant underlying
documentation, which included sales invoices and goods’
delivery notes with evidence of the customers’ receipt of the
goods and the date of receipt of the goods by the customers;

e comparing, on a sample basis, specific revenue transactions
recorded before and after the financial year end date with the
underlying sale and purchase agreements and goods’ delivery
notes to determine whether the related revenue had been
recognized in the appropriate financial period; and

e scrutinising journals affecting revenue raised during the
reporting period and comparing details of a sample of these
journals, which met certain risk-based criteria, with relevant
underlying documentation.
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IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON TRADE RECEIVABLES
Refer to summary of significant accounting policies in Note 4,
accounting estimates and judgements in Note 5 and disclosure
of trade receivables in Note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had net trade receivables
amounting to RMB133,482,000, after making loss allowance of
RMB4,580,000. It represents 27 % of the total assets of the Group
and is considered quantitatively significant to the Group.

The Group's loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit loss (“ECL") based on management’s
estimated loss rates for trade receivables. The estimated loss rates
take into account the credit history including default or delay in
payments, settlement records, subsequent settlements and ageing
analysis of the trade receivables.

We have identified impairment assessment of trade receivables as
a key audit matter due to considerable amount of judgement and
estimates being required in conducting impairment assessment as
mentioned in the forgoing paragraph.

OUR RESPONSE
Our procedures in relation to management's impairment
assessment on trade receivables included the following:

e obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of key internal
controls relating to credit control, debt collection and
calculation of the ECLs;

e assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the trade
receivables ageing report were classified within the appropriate
ageing bracket by comparing individual items in the report with
the relevant sales invoices;

e assessing the reasonableness of management'’s loss allowance
estimates by examining the information used by management
to form such judgements, including testing the accuracy of the
historical default data, evaluating whether the historical loss
rates are appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information and examining the
actual losses recorded during the current financial year and
assessing whether there was an indication of management
bias when recognising loss allowances; and

e inspecting cash receipts from customers after the financial
year end relating to trade receivables balances as at
31 December 2020, on a sample basis.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company's
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. WWe have nothing
to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibilities in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of
our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

BRBARBERRESMBRREAENEM

EENEBERAGEMBEREABEBRESTE
FE R 70 BRRF o B8 AR T 28 2R e B K 88 RR BRI EX
BEERE YHAHBEEFERNZHM
BE- BEREBEZEGRERZEBRRLA
RS BRUL AN R At sk o B FH A
AMENAE  HEFMEMA LA T SK
EEME-

EEREREBBSKTRE ETGRERERES
BEZENETER EX -EABRRM
T B 48 BE 3% 3R - 5 AR PR AJ | BRRF S SR AR
S - fid & I T8 ) #5 RR BR At 2508 OB 4B 2R
MR EERERBLFERAVHRERAIEL
R FRTE - I B SRR R EE X -

EREFSERZLEAETECNBRT B
FOERBXRAN YHREEREREE-

i
BEIN:

o RANFEBRMFHBRMEBES
MBEBRFEERBREMNER &
ARBITERERFAREZERR I
EREIMEENEZRZRE ERES
BERMNER ARUFFAIESRBER B
ECERBER BRI EBERAER
Bz A REERRARFMER
B AR AR Rt 10 [ B = 70 oK BE 3% 3R (A £
AR T 28 BB K 86 RR BRI A LR

TREEZHBONBERE  ARTE
EMEZEFCEEMNLIFEYE EKE
NEPEZENBERMEERER -

o HEEEMHRASHBERNBEERE
SRHAETEERRENAE ML

s HEERARKELKLESHEMNBE N
1R A - WAR IR FT R ER M B A2 R A8 JA
BEAREHABRAREFHEEANTE
EM-RmAaY EEENRELE
ENELERREE - HESRARTFEE
APHEEN AIZBERBEBETIES
EREIRGAVBWMERTHMEMME
SHBABEORET T MEFEAEETH
BR-BEEFNEWDEREZBERE
HEIRI PR A BV BB - AT KRR F
HHBFBRAAEER ERETREBELRL

)

=

FEABEEERAR | —E_TFFERS
China Shenghai Group Limited | Annual Report 2020

45



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBAEIRES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

e evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
the matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matter in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Wan Che Bun

Practising Certificate Number P05804

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEZHEBER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —Z=_ZTF +=-—A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHETII AARKETITR)

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR TR ARETFIT
Revenue A 6 162,718 472,888
Cost of sales 55 B AR (132,002) (369,119)
Gross profit EF 30,716 103,769
Other income and other gains/(losses), net EA A & E Uz~
(R FHE 7 1,100 1,272
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAS (35,878) (43,734)
Administrative expenses TR X (19,167) (14,098)
Expected credit loss on financial assets & RIEEMFEHEZEEE (3,309) (261)
Finance costs B IS AR AR 8 (444) (226)
Other expenses Hh X (3,358) (693)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETEBAT (B5B) T 9 (30,340) 46,029
Income tax expense Frisfmx 10 (1,915) (15,189)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable AATREEAEMLRER
to owners of the Company (E518) O F (32,255) 30,840
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 mEUW =
Items that will be reclassified HEApeEF IS
subsequently to profit or 0ss: B kaIEE
- Exchange differences arising on —HREBINEBEEN
translation of foreign operations & X E& 841 (13)
Other comprehensive income for the year R E 2 E Uk 841 (13)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income AAREEAEBEERZE
for the year attributable to owners of (BX), W= #EE
the Company (31,414) 30,827
(Loss)/earnings per share R (FE) &R
- Basic and Diluted (RMB) —EAXR#BE(AR%T) 11 (0.3226) 0.3084
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHETII AARKETITR)

2020 2019
—E-EF —ZE-hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
=2 ARETx AREF T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M WE M& 13 56,979 67,356
Deferred tax assets BT IBEE 22 731 372
Deposits paid to suppliers IR THER2IZES 14 1,479 5,746
Rental deposit HEEZS 17 477 =
Prepayments TR 17 3,500 3,150
63,166 76,624
Current assets RBEE
Inventories "E 15 75,452 79,106
Trade receivables 2 5 EWRIE 16 133,482 102,278
Deposits paid to suppliers SN THER RS 14 7,821 =
Deposits, prepayments and e FENFER
other receivables B W IR 17 6,392 8,258
Cash and cash equivalents ReEhBLEEY 18 213,479 242,578
436,626 432,220
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade payables Z SR RIA 19 16,353 8,716
Accruals, deposits received and EETER BlZe Rk
other payables H b JE S 30IE 20 15,467 12,668
Debentures E% 28 6,287 =
Lease liabilities HEBRE 27 2,916 1,065
Provision for taxation T TE B 3,878 5,501
44,901 27950
Net current assets RBEEFE 391,725 404,270
Total assets less current liabilities HEERARBARG 454,891 480,894
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Debentures EREE 28 6,959 900
Lease liabilities HEAR 27 1,515 2,163
8,474 3,063
Net assets FEE 446,417 477831
CAPITAL AND RESERVE BERK#E
Share capital % 23 8,723 8,723
Reserves & 437,694 469,108
Total equity B 446,417 477,831
On behalf of the board of directors RXEZEE
Mr. Liu Rongru Ms. Li Jiayin
Bk E ZEFL
Director Director
EZE BZ
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF

CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERBEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —Z=_ZTF +=-—A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHEHERIN AARBHITR)

Share Share Special Statutory Exchange Other Retained Total
capital  Premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve* earnings* equity
Rx  ROEE* BARE  AEREr EXRR  HibRk  RERA BRE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBFR ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETn  ARETn  ARETR
Note 23 Note (a) Note (b) Note (c)
Hiz23 FtiE(a) Wi (o) ftE(c)
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZE-h%E-B-A
e 8723 138,185 17800 17430 (1,976 5,800 261,042 447004
Profit for the year FRE - - - - - - 30,840 30,840
Other comprehensive income EZERA
Exchange differences arising on ~~ BEENERELH
translation of foreign operations ~ EXEH - - - - (13) - - (13)
Total comprehensive income ERZENAEE
for the year - - - - (13) - 30,840 30,827
Transfer to statutory reserves BREITER - - - 1,195 - - (1,195) S
Balance at 31 December 2019 ~ R=E-AE
and 1 January 2020 TZA=t+-8R
“ECEE-f-H
okt 8,723 138,185 17,800 18,625 (1,989) 5,800 290,687 477831
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - (32,255) (32,255)
Other comprehensive income E2EHA
Exchange differences arising on ~ BEENEHRELH
translation of foreign operations ~ EXEH - - - - 841 - - 841
Total comprehensive expense EREZERXEE
for the year - - - - 841 - (32,255) (31,414)
Balance at 31 December 2020 R-E-EE+-A=+-R
ey 8,723 138,185 17800 18,625 (1,148) 5,800 258,432 446,417
= The total of these balances represents “Reserves” in the consolidated * RERRBEIEGAMBMRARAN [FHE] -

statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

ma

EmBEXR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —Z=_ZTF +=-—A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB HERI - AARES|R)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Share premium account of the Company represents the excess of the
proceeds received over the nominal value of the Company's share issued.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, a director who is also a
shareholder of the Company, has waived the repayment of amounts owed to
the director which amounted to RMB 17,800,000 from its outstanding balance.
It was deemed as contribution to the Company and has been capitalised to
special reserve.

The statutory reserve represents the amount transferred from net profit for
the year of the subsidiaries established in the PRC (based on the subsidiaries,
PRC statutory financial statements) in accordance with the relevant PRC
laws until the statutory reserves reach 50% of the registered capital of the
subsidiaries. The statutory reserve cannot be reduced except either in setting
off the accumulated losses or increasing capital.

A EEEERAT | — 2B EEERE

T

(a)

(c)

AR A 2 Bty B R TD s 2 YA 18 BRI A
REABBEITROEEZ B

HE-_T-—MF+-_A=Z+—HLEFE KAK
ARAIBRRZESHEREELEBP RERIRA
K %17,800,0007T H) 4 /R 5 #) FRIE KB o 3%
SHERABARTIES D KBRS RIH
HIEE AR -

EERBERBABETEERE P BEKINEB
RAMFRERN (RIBMEB R RN BEENB
BREBENEHE BEEEERBEINZSHE
NEFEMEAR50%  BrIE AN IEIE Rt B R
BINEA - BRI AR DR E
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF
CASH FLOWS

FEEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —Z=_ZTF +=-—A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB HERI - AARES|R)

2020 2019
—E-BE —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHREERE
(Loss)/profit before income tax expense BrETIS RGBT (8],
Y ) (30,340) 46,029
Adjustments for: MATEIBEELFE:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% - BE M REGITE 15,085 10,795
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTREEENE 2,368 1,404
Written down of inventories T E MR 2,105 =
Impairment loss of property, ¥ BB REREREEE
plant and equipment 675 -
Impairment loss/(reversal of) on TR THEB RSN
deposit paid to suppliers BEEE, (#E) 17 (130)
Impairment loss on trade receivables g 5 RWRIEREES 3,292 851
Reversal of impairment loss on loan receivables [ 4 & 2R (B /&5 18 £ @ - (460)
Bank interest income RITH BUA (857) (866)
Loan interest income B R B A - (329)
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEZNE 215 221
Interest expense on debenture EREE N ERX 229 =
Gain in early termination of lease RELRIEHEE 2 W - (23)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BERZED
plant and equipment & 18 - 1
Operating profit before working capital changes — &8 & & % B) f A% & i 7| (7.211) 57493
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables B ol (#m) R (34,496) 6,813
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, prepayments and 124 - 78 1~ 7} 38 K £ FE U
other receivables RIER A ($Gn) 968 (3,128)
Increase in long-term prepayment = EATE 1 538 N - (3,150)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL, (&) 1,549 (8,800)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables B SR FIEE I, CRd) 7,637 (31,193)
Increase in accruals, deposits received and EstB A -BlWike Xk
other payables F b JE S BRIEE AN 2,798 6,297
Cash (used in)/generated from operations IEETE (), ELH
HE (28,755) 24,332
Income taxes paid BERATEH (3,897) (18,698)
Net cash (used in)/generated from AT (BTFH), EER
operating activities FH & (32,652) 5,634
Cash flows from investing activities REFTBRERE
Prepayment of acquisition of property, IREEM % - B R E R
plant and equipment A FRIA (3,500) =
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWE BENKEHE (3,699) (5,004)
Loan repayment received BEREEZRR - 7993
Interest received B U B 857 1,195
Net cash (used in)/generated from BREZTE (ATH)
investing activities B8 FH & (6,342) 4,184
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF

CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —Z=_ZTF +=-—A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB HERI - AARES|R)

2020 2019
—EC-EE —ZT-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AREFIT
Cash flows from financing activities MEITBHRERE
Prepayment for lease MEEMAR (960) -
Repayment of the lease liabilities ERHEARE (2,104) (1,259)
Proceeds from debentures BEHFTS IR 19,776 =
Repayment of debenture EHEESH (6,967) S
Interest paid B E (229) (221)
Net cash generated from/(used in) L ZEATRE . (FTH)E
financing activities FHE 9,516 (1,480)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRBESZEZEY (BD)
cash equivalents 30 28 (29,478) 8,338
Cash and cash equivalents FHNRESRRESEEY
at beginning of year 242,578 234,253
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and EZZEHHEEK
cash equivalents ReEENNEE 379 (13)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRESRBESEEY 213,479 242,578
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRBEESENEHDN
cash equivalents il
Cash and bank balances R RiR1THEH 213,479 242,678
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 8 January 2016 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as revised and consolidated) of the Cayman Islands and its
shares have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 18 July 2017 The Company's registered office is
located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company's
principal place of business is located at 5th floor, No.5
Factory, Mexi Road, Huandong Water, Tongon District, Hui
Industrial Park, Xiamen City, Fujian Province, PRC.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the principal activities of its subsidiaries (together with
the Company collectively refer to as “Group”) is packaging
and sales of seafood products and procurement and sales of
fast moving consumer goods and others.

The directors consider the Company’'s immediate and
ultimate holding company is Precisely Unique Limited, which
is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the ultimate
controlling shareholder is Mr. Liu Rongru.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(A) ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs -
EFFECTIVE FROM 1 JANUARY 2020

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants has issued a number of amended
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group:

° Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a
Business

° Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8,
Definition of Material

° Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and
HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

None of these amended HKFRSs has a material
impact on the Group's results and financial position
for the current or prior period. The Group has not
early applied any new or amended HKFRSs that is not
yet effective for the current accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) — continued
NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN
ISSUED BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

(B)

The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group's financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group. The Group's current
intention is to apply these changes on the date they

become effective.

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 37

HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS
39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020?

China Shenghai Group Limited | Annual Report 2020

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
HK Interpretation 5 (2020),
Presentation of Financial
Statements - Classification
by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand
Clause*

Proceeds before Intended

Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

Insurance Contracts*
Reference to the Conceptual
Framework®

Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture®

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform - Phase 2!
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued

(B)

NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs THAT HAVE
BEEN ISSUED BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE -

continued

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

d Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022.

3 Effective for business combinations for which the date of
acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.

g The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the
sale or contribution of assets occurring in annual periods
beginning on or after a date to be determined.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and HK
Interpretation 5 (2020), Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause

The amendments clarify that the classification of
liabilities as current or non-current is based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting
period, specify that classification is unaffected by
expectations about whether an entity will exercise its
right to defer settlement of a liability and explain that
rights are in existence if covenants are complied with
at the end of the reporting period. The amendments
also introduce a definition of ‘settlement’ to make
clear that settlement refers to the transfer to the
counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other
assets or services.

HK Int 5 (2020) was revised as a consequence of
the Amendments to HKAS 1 issued in August 2020.
The revision to HK Int 5 (2020) updates the wordings
in the interpretation to align with the Amendments
to HKAS 1 with no change in conclusion and do not
change the existing requirements.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of the amendments and revision
in the future will have an impact on the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued

(B)

NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs THAT HAVE

BEEN ISSUED BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE -
continued

Amendments to HKAS 16, Proceeds before
Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management. Instead, the proceeds from selling
such items, and the cost of producing those items, is
recognised in profit or loss.

The directors of the Company is currently assessing
the impact that the application of the amendments
will have on the Group's consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts —
Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’
a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly
to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a
contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g. direct labour and materials) or an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
contracts (e.g. the allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment
used in fulfilling the contract).

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the amendments will likely impact on
the Group's accounting policies in respect of the
determination of when contracts are onerous, and
the measurement of provision for onerous contracts
recognised.

HKFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

The new standard establishes the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of insurance contracts and supersedes
HKFRS 4, Insurance Contracts. The standard outlines
a 'General Model’, which is modified for insurance
contracts with direct participation features, described
as the 'Variable Fee Approach’. The General Model is
simplified if certain criteria are met by measuring the
liability for remaining coverage using the Premium
Allocation Approach.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of this standard in the future will have
an impact on the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) — continued

(B)

NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs THAT HAVE

BEEN ISSUED BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE -
continued

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers
to the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 instead of the version issued in 2010.
The amendments add to HKFRS 3 a requirement
that, for obligations within the scope of HKAS 37 an
acquirer applies HKAS 37 to determine whether at
the acquisition date a present obligation exists as a
result of past events. For a levy that would be within
the scope of HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, the acquirer
applies HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 to determine whether the
obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay
the levy has occurred by the acquisition date. The
amendments also add an explicit statement that
an acquirer does not recognise contingent assets
acquired in a business combination.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of the amendments in the future will
have an impact on the financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where
there is a sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture. When
the transaction with an associate or joint venture
that is accounted for using the equity method, any
gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of
a subsidiary that does not contain a business are
recognised in the profit or loss only to the extent of
the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or
joint venture. Similarly, any gains or losses resulting
from the remeasurement of retained interest in any
former subsidiary (that has become an associate or a
joint venture) to fair value are recognised in the profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these amendments may have an impact
on the financial statements in future periods should
such transaction arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued

(B)

NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs THAT HAVE (B)
BEEN ISSUED BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE -

continued

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements amends a number of
standards, including:

HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, which permit

RMBRBMBHRELER ([FEM
BHREEA]) —&

CRMEERERZHETRE
ERIERMBRERER &

—F-\FE-F-FFEE
BHHE LR 2 FE N
ERMEY S EEAEST T
8B

. FEV B HREERF
KIERERABBYB

a subsidiary that applies paragraph D16(a) of
HKFRS 1 to measure cumulative translation
differences using the amounts reported by its
parent, based on the parent’s date of transition
to HKFRSs.

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which clarify
the fees included in the ‘10 per cent’ test in
paragraph B3.3.6 of HKFRS 9 in assessing
whether to derecognise a financial liability,
explaining that only fees paid or received
between the entity and the lender, including
fees paid or received by either the entity or the
lender on other’s behalf are included.

HKFRS 16, Leases, which amend lllustrative
Example 13 to remove the illustration of
reimbursement of leasehold improvements
by the lessor in order to resolve any potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease
incentives that might arise because of how
lease incentives are illustrated in that example.

HKAS 41, Agriculture, which remove the
requirement to exclude taxation cash flows
when measuring the fair value of a biological
asset using a present value technique.
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The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of the amendments in the future will
have an impact on the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. NS BMERELED ([FEH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued BREER]) —&
(B) NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs THAT HAVE (B) CHEMEERERZHITRE
BEEN ISSUED BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE - BT BB EREERN &
continued

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect
financial reporting when a company replaces the
old interest rate benchmark with an alternative
benchmark rate as a result of the interest rate
benchmark reform (the “Reform”). The amendments
complement those issued in November 2019 and
relate to (a) changes to contractual cash flows in
which an entity will not have to derecognise or
adjust the carrying amount of financial instruments
for changes required by the Reform, but will
instead update the effective interest rate to reflect
the change to the alternative benchmark rate; (b)
hedge accounting in which an entity will not have
to discontinue its hedge accounting solely because
it makes changes required by the Reform, if the
hedge meets other hedge accounting criteria; and
(c) disclosures in which an entity will be required to
disclose information about new risks arising from
the Reform and how it manages the transition to
alternative benchmark rates.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of the amendments in the future will
have an impact on the financial statements.

BBETERFE395%  EBE
BIREERFEAGE - TEY R
EERFE7Y EEYBERE
ERIFEIER BB KIKEE
BIE165% Z 15T [ FI R B &K
E-FOoEE
ZEBERARAFEREENRE
(MRE|)MEHRRRIABRE
ZE ) B B I 3R BB AT R
FEUBERENHRB - ZEE
5T E22019F 11 A M HE 5] 48
AKX FRE@QANBERE
B OBERETAXREMEXRN
AEMEESE MeREFHER
F R A I e R E R &
) (o)A ME R
EHME PG IZE BEE
HMRENRERRERNESMm
IFEH g RE Mo R
BR ERAWEENNREMN
EROFRBER A&
AEEREREEFERNBE -

AARIEFHEF BRERAZS
BRI T &8 M H R IEK TR

B2 48R
TEC

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION 3. mEERE

3.1 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 3.1
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the "HKFRSs")
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. In addition, the financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION - continued 3.
3.2 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis.

3.3 FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY
The functional currency of the Company is Hong
Kong dollar (“HKD"), while the consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB") as
the Group's main operations are in the PRC and the
functional currency of the Group's major operating
subsidiaries in RMB.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

4.1 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”). Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies
together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on
the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

4.2 SUBSIDIARIES

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are
present: (i) power over the investee, (ii) exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from the investee, and (iii)
the ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

4.3

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred
to the customers at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred
over time if the Group's performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

o creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over
time, revenue is recognised over the period of
the contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods or
service.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to
the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amounts
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract
inception.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
REVENUE RECOGNITION - continued

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest method.

4.3

For contracts where the period between the payment
and the transfer of the promised goods or services is
one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Seafood and algae products

Customers obtain control of the seafood and
algae products when the goods are delivered
to and have been accepted by them. Revenue
is thus recognised upon when the customers
accepted the seafood and algae products.
There is generally only one performance
obligation. Invoices are usually payable within
60 — 120 days.

Fast moving consumer goods

Customers obtain control of the fast moving
consumer goods when the goods are shipped.
Revenue from procurement and sale for these
goods is thus recognised at point in time basis
upon when the customers accept the fast
moving consumer goods. There is generally
only one performance obligation. The Group
recognises revenue on net basis as its revenue
for procurement and sale where the Group
acts as agent are provided by other suppliers
to the customers. Invoices are usually payable
within 30 days.

Other income

Rental income under operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis
on the principal outstanding at the applicable
interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

4.4

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment including electric
equipment, plant and machinery, motor vehicles,
furniture and equipment and leasehold improvement
in the production or supply of goods, or for
administrative purposes, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes
its purchase price and the costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as
to write off their costs net of expected residual value
over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The useful lives, residual value and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period. The useful lives are
as follows:

Electric equipment 3 years
Plant and machinery 8-10 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Furniture and equipment 5 years

Shorter of lease term and
remaining useful life

Leasehold improvement

Shorter of the asset's
useful life and the lease
term

Right-of-use assets

An asset is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is higher
than the asset’s estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sale proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

4.5

LEASES

The Group as a lessee

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases
or finance leases) are required to be capitalised in
the statement of financial position as right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, but accounting policy
choices exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise
(i) leases which are short-term leases and/or (ii)
leases for which the underlying asset is of low-value.
The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for low-value assets and
leases for which at the commencement date have a
lease term less than 12 months. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been expensed on
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset
The right-of-use asset is initially recognised at cost
and would comprise:

(i) the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability (see below for the accounting
policy to account for lease liability);

(ii) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

(iii) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee;
and

(iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the
lessee in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease,
unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories.

Except for right-of-use asset that meets the definition
of an investment property or a class of property,
plant and equipment to which the Group applies
the revaluation model, the Group measures the
right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under
the cost model, the Group measures the right-to-
use at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability. For right-of-use
asset that meets the definition of a leasehold land
and buildings held for own use (see note 4.4), they
are carried at revalued amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

4.5

LEASES - continued

Right-of-use asset — continued

The Group has leased a number of properties under
tenancy agreements which the Group exercises it
judgement and determines that it is a separate class
of asset apart from the leasehold land and buildings
which is held for own use. As a result, the right-of-
use asset arising from the properties under tenancy
agreements are carried at depreciated cost.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date
of commencement of the lease. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses
the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate.

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date
of commencement of the lease. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses
the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not
paid at the commencement date of the lease are
considered to be lease payments:

(i) fixed lease payments less any lease incentives
receivable;

(ii) variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at commencement date;

(iii) amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

(iv) exercise price of a purchase option, if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

(v) payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

4.5

LEASES - continued

Lease liability — continued

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by:

(i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability;

(ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the
lease payments made; and

(iii) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect
any reassessment or lease modification, or
to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease
payments.

When the Group revises its estimate of the term
of any lease (because, for example, it re-assesses
the probability of a lessee extension or termination
option being exercised), it adjusts the carrying
amount of the lease liability to reflect the payments
to make over the revised term, which are discounted
using a revised discount rate. The carrying value of
lease liabilities is similarly revised when the variable
element of future lease payments dependent on a
rate or index is revised, except the discount rate
remains unchanged. In both cases, an equivalent
adjustment is made to the carrying value of the right-
of-use asset, with the revised carrying amount being
amortised over the remaining (revised) lease term.
If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is
adjusted to zero, any further reduction is recognised
in profit or loss.

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms
of a lease with the lessor, if the renegotiation results
in one or more additional assets being leased for an
amount commensurate with the standalone price for
the additional rights-of-use obtained, the modification
is accounted for as a separate lease, in all other
cases, where the renegotiated increases the scope of
the lease (whether that is an extension to the lease
term, or one or more additional assets being leased),
the lease liability is remeasured using the discount
rate applicable on the modification date, with the
right-of-use asset being adjusted by the same
amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

4.6

4.7

INVENTORIES

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (OTHER THAN
FINANCIAL ASSETS)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or
an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

° Property, plant and equipment

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use)
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another HKFRS, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

4.7

4.8

4.9

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (OTHER THAN
FINANCIAL ASSETS) - continued

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to
the extent that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future
cash flows expected to be derived from the asset,
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit.

RESEARCH EXPENDITURE
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
in hand.

SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital
is determined using the nominal value of shares that
have been issued. Any transaction costs associated
with the issuing of shares are deducted from share
premium (net of any related income tax benefit)
to the extent they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
4.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

a)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component)
is initially measured at fair value plus, for an
item not at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade
receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date,
that is, the date that the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which debt
instruments are classified, but the debt
instruments held by the Group fall into the
amortised cost category, which is as follows:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised
cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest rate method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain on derecognition is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT - continued

4.11

b)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances
for expected credit loss (“ECL") on trade
receivables and its financial assets measured
at amortised cost. ECLs are measured on
either of the following bases:

o 12-months ECLs: these are ECLs that
result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting
date; and

o Lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that
result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is
then discounted at an approximation to the
assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Group measured loss allowances for trade
receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach
and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime
ECLs. The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT - continued

4.11

b)

Impairment loss on financial assets —
continued

For other debt financial assets, ECLs are based
on lifetime ECLs except when there has not
been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, in which case the allowance
will be based on the 12-months ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of
a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating
ECL, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group's
historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking
information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it
is more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
in default when the debtor is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to action such
as realising security (if any is held); or the
financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either
an individual or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past
due status.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 4.
4.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT - continued 4.1
b) Impairment loss on financial assets —

continued

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when:

significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default
or being more than 90 days past due.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance
account for its financial assets measured at
amortised cost.

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the debtor
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the
debtor has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or
in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over 1 year past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group's recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. Any
recoveries made are recognised in profit or

loss.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less
loss allowance) of the financial asset. For
non credit-impaired financial assets, interest
income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
4.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT - continued

c)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and financial liabilities
at amortised costs are initially measured at
fair value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
sale in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading
are recognised in profit or loss.

Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid
contract may be designated as a financial
liability at fair value through profit or loss,
except where the embedded derivative does
not significantly modify the cash flows or
it is clear that separation of the embedded
derivative is prohibited.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
4.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT - continued

c)

Financial liabilities — continued
Financial liabilities at FVTPL — continued

Financial liabilities may be designated upon
initial recognition as at FVTPL if the following
criteria are met: (i) the designation eliminates
or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the liabilities or recognising
gains or losses on them on a different
basis; (i) the liabilities are part of a group of
financial liabilities which are managed and
their performance evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy; or (iii) the financia
liability contains an embedded derivative that
would need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial
liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise, except
for the gains and losses arising from the
Group's own credit risk which are presented
in other comprehensive income with no
subsequent reclassification to the statement
of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss
does not include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade and other payables, borrowings, certain
preference shares and the debt element of
convertible loan note issued by the Group
are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method. The
related interest expense is recognised in profit
or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the amortisation process.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
4.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT - continued

d)

el

f)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or liability,
or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been
transferred and the transfer meets the criteria
for derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a
financial liability in whole or in part as a
result of renegotiating the terms of that
liability, the equity instruments issued are
the consideration paid and are recognised
initially and measured at their fair value
on the date the financial liability or part
thereof is extinguished. If the fair value of
the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments
are measured to reflect the fair value of the
financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability or part thereof extinguished and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or
loss for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
4.12 FOREIGN CURRENCY

Transactions entered into by the group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate(s)
(the “functional currency”) are recorded at the
rates ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign
currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated
at the rates ruling at the end of reporting period.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case, the exchange differences are
also recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Renminbi) at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the rates approximating to those ruling when
the transactions took place are used. All assets and
liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the
rate ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
as foreign exchange reserve (attributed to minority
interests as appropriate). Exchange differences
recognised in profit or loss of group entities’ separate
financial statements on the translation of long-
term monetary items forming part of the Group's
net investment in the foreign operation concerned
are reclassified to other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as exchange reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

4.13

INCOME TAXES
Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from
ordinary activities adjusted for items that are non-
assessable or disallowable for income tax purposes
and is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period. The amount of current tax payable
or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount
expected to be paid or received that reflects any
uncertainty related to income tax.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill not deductible for tax purposes and initial
recognition of assets and liabilities that are not part
of the business combination which affect neither
accounting nor taxable profits, taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised, provided that the
deductible temporary differences are not arises
from initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a
transaction other than in a business combination that
affects neither taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate
to the expected manner in which the carrying amount
of the asset or liability is realised or settled and that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period, and reflects any uncertainty
related to income taxes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

4.13

INCOME TAXES - continued

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income tax levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income
or when they relate to items recognized directly in
equity in which case the taxes are also recognised
directly in equity.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
a) Defined contribution retirement plan

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the
PRC government, the Group participates in
a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government (the “Scheme”),
whereby the subsidiary of the Company in
the PRC is required to contribute a certain
percentage of the basic salaries of its
employees to the Scheme to fund their
retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the
retirement benefits obligations of all existing
and future retired employees of the subsidiary
of the Company. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the Scheme is to pay
the ongoing required contributions under the
Scheme. Contributions under the Scheme are
charged to profit or loss as incurred. There
are no provisions under the Scheme whereby
forfeited contributions may be used to reduce
future contributions.

b) Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits)
that are expected to be settled wholly before
twelve months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employees render
the related service. Short term employee
benefits are recognised in the year when the
employees render the related service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

4.15

4.16

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

RELATED PARTIES
(a) A person or a close member of that person'’s
family is related to the Group if that person

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the
Company's parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
4.16 RELATED PARTIES - continued

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(ii)

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
of the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
4.16 RELATED PARTIES - continued

4.17

(b) — continued

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

(ii) children of that person’s spouse or
domestic partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that
person’s spouse or domestic partner.

GOVERNMENT GRANT

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they become receivable and are recognised as other
revenue, rather than reducing the related expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B B BRI UAREDIR)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Given Covid-19 pandemic has created and may
continue to create significant uncertainty in macroeconomic
conditions, actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods. In addition, this note also
explains where there have been actual adjustments this year
as a result of an error and of changes to previous estimates.

In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the key judgements applied and key
sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk
of resulting a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within next financial year are as
follows:

DEPRECIATION

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment in
accordance with the accounting policies stated in note 4.4.
The estimated useful lives reflect the directors’ estimates of
the periods that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of these assets. The management
reassesses the estimated useful lives at the end of each of
the reporting date.

IMPAIRMENT OF RECEIVABLES

The impairment of receivables are based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected credit loss rates. The
Group adopts judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting inputs for computing such impairment loss, broadly
based on the available customers’ historical data, existing
market conditions including forward looking estimates at
end of reporting period.

Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying amount of
receivables and impairment losses in the periods in which
such estimate has been changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS - continued

ESTIMATES OF CURRENT TAX AND DEFERRED TAX
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount
of the provision for tax and the timing of payment of the
related tax. Where the final tax outcomes are different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
periods in which such determination are made.

DETERMINING WHETHER THE GROUP IS ACTING AS

A PRINCIPAL OR AS AN AGENT IN PROVISION OF
PROCUREMENT SERVICE

During the year, the Group has commenced the business
of selling fast moving consumer goods and others whereby
the Group enters into sale contracts with its customers in
Hong Kong and South Korea and purchase contracts with its
suppliers in the PRC. The Group sources for and sells fast
moving consumer goods and others that suit the customers’
specific requirements as stated in the sale contracts.
Management considers that the Group does not bear price
and inventory risks with regard to the fast moving consumer
goods and others as the sale contract terms, including the
selling prices for the goods, are agreed upon after taking
into consideration the prevailing market prices of the fast
moving consumer goods and the Group does not obtain
control of the goods before they are sold to the customers.

Management of the Group considers that the Group is
acting as an agent in these sale transactions with the
customers because it does not obtain control of the fast
moving consumer goods and others before they are sold
to the customers and therefore, net amounts of the sales
and cost of sales of these indent trading transactions were
recorded as service income. In determining whether the
Group is acting as a principal or as an agent, management is
required to exercise significant judgement and to consider
all relevant facts and circumstances of this trading business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B B BRI UAREDIR)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified
in a contract with a customer, net of expected returns of
goods, discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when performance obligation is
satisfied. The Group’s revenue is derived from selling goods
and providing services with revenue recognised at a point in
time when control of the goods or services has transferred
to the customer. For packaging and sales of dried seafood,
algae and fungi and seafood snacks, the control is
transferred when the goods are delivered to the customer.
For procurement and sales of fast moving consumer goods
and others, the control is transferred when the goods to
which the procurement services relate are shipped.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

In a manner consistent with how the Group manages its
business and the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has identified two reportable and
operating segments, namely (i) packaging and sales of
marine products segment and (ii) all other segment.

CORRECTION OF REVENUE RECOGNITION

In the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the Group for the six months
ended 30 June 2020 that was included in the interim
report of the Group published on 17 September 2020, the
Group reported revenue from sale of fast moving consumer
goods on gross basis. In the course of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020, the Group reassessed the nature
of its promises to its customers in relation to the sales
of fast moving consumer goods. As explained in Note 5
above, management of the Group has assessed that the
Group is acting as an agent in these sale transactions
with the customers because it does not obtain control on
the fast moving consumer goods before they are sold to
the customers. The Group, acting as an agent, therefore
recognises revenue on net basis. The change resulted in
adjustments to revenue and cost of sales amounting to
RMB66,320,000 and RMB66,320,000 respectively for the
six months period ended 30 June 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

For sales of marine products and procurement and sale of
fast moving consumer goods and others, the performance
obligations are satisfied and revenue is recognised at a
point in time when control of the goods or services has

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - 6. WARDHER —E&E
continued
DISAGGREGATED REVENUE INFORMATION WADEER
By nature of goods sold or services provided: HEEEMKFTIRHRBHMEE -
2020 2019
RMB 000 RMB'000
AR TR AREFIT
Revenue from contract with customers EF & QU
Sale of marine products: SHEKEM
— Dried seafood —RBER 88,018 246,108
- Algae and fungi —BREEQMREEMD 62,755 190,283
- Seafood snacks —BERBER 4,780 36,497
Procurement and sales of fast KEREERREEMR
moving consumer goods and others HAb 7,165 =
162,718 472,888
Geographical markets based on REEFNVEBEE S WILETIS
location of customers
- Mainland China i al=1N 155,553 472,888
- Hong Kong —&BB 236 =
- South Korea —FRE 6,929 =
162,718 472,888
Timing of revenue recognition WARRRE
- Sales at a point in time — BRI R 162,718 472,888
UNSATISFIED PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS KETHBENEH

FLKEmAYIHE R RIEE & R H M
R R HE B SORFS H 12 B
CEBREFPE BOEBDHEM
Hﬁz)\)‘raﬁé‘é EBEmEFER

transferred to the customer. No unsatisfied performance ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬂi%ﬁﬁ’ﬂ%%’ﬂ%ﬁ% °
obligation at the end of the each reporting years.
INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS EBEEFEEZEFMNEHR

No customer contributed 10% or more of the Group's
revenue during the year ended 31 December 2020. (2019:
Nil)

BE_T_THF+_A=+—HLHF
E-HBERPABMAEEKEMNI0%
FRE(ZE-NF:F)-

INFORMATION ABOUT GEOGRAPHICAL AREAS EEMBENER
The Group's sales by geographical areas, based on the AEBRBEXFERNEEMEE 5

delivery destination of the goods as requested by the
customers, were all within the PRC, Hong Kong and South
Korea.

The Group’s non-current assets other than financial
instruments, mainly represent property, plant and
equipment, are all located in the PRC.

HETEREARAR | T _TFFERSE
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - 6. WARDHER —E&E
continued
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS DEUBAREE
The Group determines its operating segments based on the AEBERBEFELEERAKERHAIU
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that EHSRBE MR EM RS KA E LS
are used to make strategic decisions. DB e
The Group reportable segments are managed separately AR ESEEBRETNRAERDERT -
as each business offers different products and services WEETRMNERRE E&KE kY
and requires different business strategies. The following WMEPHDIO>AERE - TXB A%
summary describes the operations in each of in each of the EMmES ML EES:
Group's reportable segments:
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-Z-_ZF+-A=+—HL#TF
E
Sale of marine All other
products segments Total
HEKER FMEHM2H fst
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR AR®TR
Revenue from external customers REHNREF Ik
From external customers REIAKP 155,553 7,165 162,718
Segment results D EEE (25,887) 3,179 (22,708)
Other income and other gains/(losses) Hibh g A R E A
e,/ (B1R) 187
Finance costs IR (229)
Corporate expenses TERE (7590)
Loss before taxation BBl BB (30,340)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—-NAF+=-A=+—HL#F
E
Sale of marine
products Total
$H K E BEr
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREEFIT AREF T
Revenue from external customers REIREFHRE
From external customers REINREP 472,888 472,888
Segment results DEEE 51,045 51,045
Other income and other gains/(losses) Hg A R E e, (E518) 328
Finance costs B 75 AR AR (13)
Corporate expenses TERE (5,331)
Profit before taxation BR A5 A1 ) 46,029
HREAEEEERAT | —E_ZFFEHRE
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - 6. WARDHBER &
continued
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS - continued TEHBAREE &
The accounting policies of the reportable and operating AZMREEDE 2 BEREAE
segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies. M BERAR D EERES D
Segment results represent the profit earned by or loss from ECHREN A s A Sk B WAR DB A T
each segment without allocation of certain other income, HEmmkA HtmkEBE &1
other gains and losses, certain finance costs and corporate BRARTPEREZ L ARERD A
expenses. This is the measure reported to the CODM MERBHAZAZTELEEARAZRE
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance Bz o
assessment.
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION H 2 5 & %
For the year ended 31 December 2020 Egifz:g:gfﬁ'l' “A=+—HL#%E
Sale of
marine All other
products segments  Unallocated Total
FEEM
HEKER 28 AAE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Trn AR%Tn AR%TR AR%Txn
Amounts (charged)/credited (k) /A BERE
in the measurement of FTEZRE
segment profit or loss:
Depreciation of property, nE- BERZENE
plant and equipment (15,698) (1,755) - (17,453)
Impairment loss on financial assets SREERERSSE (2,974) (163) (172) (3,309)
Impairment loss on property, mE BERXEREEE
plant and equipment (675) - - (675)
Finance cost BBAA (151) (64) (229) (444)
Amounts regularly provided to EHEFELERTA
the CODM but not included EHELEET AL
in the measure of segment BRiEZRE:
profit or loss:
Income tax expense FEHRES (1,028) (887) - (1,915)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 %EZ'—?— hWE+=ZA=+—BLHF
Sale of
marine
products Unallocated Total
SHEKEM KA Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBFT ARETT
Amounts (charged)/credited (308 /s Ao BER
in the measurement of segment FFEZRE
profit or loss:
Depreciation of property, ME- BERSETE
plant and equipment (12,002) (197) (12,199)
(Impairment loss)/reversal of SRMEE CREEBE)/
on financial assets # (721) 460 (261)
Finance cost B B AR (213) (13) (226)
Amounts regularly provided to the CODM  FHMEZ 2B RE A
but not included in the measure of REETEAADE
segment profit or loss: BRiTECHAE:
Income tax credit FEHHe (14,868) (321) (15,189)

HETEREARAR | T _TFFERSE
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7 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), 7. Htw AREMmE (E#E) -
NET HE
2020 2019
—g=¥F —T-rF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE TR ARET T
Interest income on bank deposits RITFRFIBIA 857 866
Interest income on secured loan FEU B | E KFE WA
receivables - 329
Rental income HE WA 55 55
Government grants (note) BB (MEE) 145 S
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BE K& EREE
plant and equipment - (1)
Gain on early termination of lease REKIEHEE Zz K= = 23
Others Hty 43 =
Total #Et 1,100 1,272
Note: B3k -
Included in profit or loss is HK$145,000 (2019: Nil) of government grants BaeEadsEliTREBRFELDNHEE
obtained from Employment Support Scheme (“ESS”) under the Anti-epidemic SREEFE (R EE]) #1S549145,0007%
Fund launched by the Hong Kong SAR Government supporting the payroll of T(ZE-NF E\)NBNEE UAREEE
the Group’s employees. Under the ESS, the Group had to commit to spend BFMREHIF - RERMEFE  KEBEK
these grants on payroll expenses, and not reduce employee head count EEZERDAREMEY YA EEEREA
below prescribed levels for a specified period of time. The Group does not TEBEEBABBRLEZENIEBEKE - REET
have other unfulfilled obligations relating to this program. EHEM R B RO RBITRE
8.  FINANCE COST 8. HMBRE
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARET T
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBEMNERX 215 221
Interest expense on debentures &5 F B X 229 -
Others HAb - 5
Total B 444 226

HREAEEEERAT | —E_ZFFEHRE
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9. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX
(Loss)/profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/

=

BRATSBLIAT (B518) I F
FREiAl (B1R), S Bk (5

(crediting): A) Ty &8 :
2020 2019
—E-EfF —E-hnF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARETF T
Auditor's remuneration I3 Gl 964 952
Cost of sales (Note) SHEA A (FEE) 132,002 369,119
Written down of inventories 7 & #MUs 2,105 -
Research expenditure M= 578 690
Depreciation charge e
— Property, plant and equipment —E - HWEREE 17,453 12,199
Impairment loss of property, Y BEMREREEE
plant and equipment 675 -
Impairment loss on trade receivables B S RWFIERBESRE 3,292 851
Impairment loss/(reversal of) on X TFHERMNIZSHRE
deposit paid to suppliers (Note 14) B8, (BE) (H:E14) 17 (130)
Reversal of impairment loss on FEWE OB E B 1B [
loan receivables - (460)
Operating lease rental in respect of: T SENEEHERS
- Short-term leases expenses —REEEES T 507 1,325
Staff costs (including directors’ BINAK (BRESEHS
emoluments — Note 12) —KfsE12)
— Salaries and wages —-HekIE 29,634 34,880
- Bonus —JE4T 491 468
- Retirement scheme contribution —RIRET B 2,086 4,039

Note: Cost of sales are mainly comprised of cost of inventories
recognised as expenses, which amounted to RMB129,897000(2019:

RMB346,669,000)

Mik: HERAXZRERRAAINGTEK
A AR ¥129,897000T (=T — N4 :
AR %346,669,0007T) °

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FIBEHBEX
The amount of taxation in the consolidated statement of EEERERTHHIBESREE:
comprehensive income represents:
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREEF T
Current tax & HIF IR
Tax for the year FERIB 434 12,723
Under-provision in respect of prior year BEFEREBETR 149 744
Deferred tax IEIEF IR
Current year REEZ 1,332 1,722
Total @t 1,915 15,189

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT")
and Implementation Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the Company's PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

FEFEEEERAT | T - TEEERE
89

BIE(PEDEMERE) ([DEFAT
B R (CEMEBURERIER) -
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China Shenghai Group Limited | Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

10.

1.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE - continued

Provision for the PRC EIT for the year ended 31 December
2020 and 2019 was made based on the estimated
assessable profits calculated in accordance with the
relevant income tax laws, and regulations applicable to the
subsidiaries operated in the PRC.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31 December
2020. No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
in 2019 as the Group had no assessable income arising in
Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to
the (loss)/profit before income tax per the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as follows:

10.

FrieBimx—&
BE_ZT-_ZTER-_FT-NF+_A
=+ —HIEFENTEBEMRSHE
BRRBRERANETELENHEL
Tﬂﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ BOEBIRR PGt BTG
B fif BT FE AR 00 M A 1 o

HE-_ZT-_ZFTHE+-HA=+T—HL
FE BENGBIRMEFTERT R T
M165% T H- AR AEEHE_-ZT
—NF+=ZA=+— Etiflﬁ
EEBHBERMEF AR =
— NI B E B 1S fRf’Eﬁﬁéﬁ

FRANMAEHRAS ZES 2EEER
PROIEN R RS B AT (B18) 8 7 3
BRAAE -

2020 2019
—E-EF T —NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARET T
(Loss)/profit before income tax BATEF AT (E18), 5 F (30,340) 46,029
Tax thereon at domestic rates applicable Tﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ/\ﬁﬁﬁ AR R
to profit or loss in the jurisdictions Bam AR E
concerned I8 (7,222) 11,921
Underprovision in prior year BEFEREBETIR 149 744
Tax effect of expenses not deductible T—fﬁﬁlﬁﬂl B B9 B S2 Y
for tax purposes Bigee 296 1,373
Tax effect of revenue not taxable TR A BTS2
for tax purpose (23) (11)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERNBIEBENMGLE 8,715 1,162
Income tax expense for the year FAMSHAXZ 1,915 15,189
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 1. BREARARBERF
2020 2019
—EEHF —NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AR¥TT
(Loss)/profits (B8’),/&F
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of NARIEE AR (BE),/
the Company i A (32,255) 30,840
2020 2019
—E-EF T—NF
Number'000 Number'000
Fr T %
Number of shares ' &vig - 4=
Weighted average number of LTmiRmEFEHEE (M)
ordinary shares (note) 100,000 100,000

HETERERRAR | =
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1.

12.

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE -

BREARBERRN-HE

continued

Notes: B 5

(a) Diluted earnings per share were the same as the basic earnings per (a) HRAEEREBEE_Z_TEFR_FT
share as the Group had no potential ordinary shares outstanding —NE+-_A=Z+—BLEFEESETW
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. BOOEIIMNEELBR REREERT

HEREARFIER -

(b) On 25 May 2020, the share consolidation resolution has been passed (b) RZZEZZEFRA=ZT+HE - AAERK
by the Company’s shareholders in the AGM. On 26 May 2020, every RRBRRBFRAGRBRMNE HRZE
ten issued and unissued shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital R RZBZZEFRA=-F+B XA
of the Company were consolidated into one consolidated share of ARAPE+TREREE.OIBTHE
HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company. The authorised BITRRETROEHRERBIRAH
share capital of the Company became HK$100,000,000 divided into FREE.I0E T — A D - &
1,000,000,000 consolidated shares of par value of HK$0.10 each, of A BATE AL £100,000,000/8 7T 0 2
which 100,000,000 consolidated shares of par value of HK$0.10 each #1,000,000,000/% & i E {E0. 1075 L /Y
was in issue. A HHR D - £ 4 100,000,0008% R EE

0. 10T A IR B 817 -
The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the BE-ZT-_TFR=-T-—HLhF+=A
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 have been retrospectively =t+t—BLFEEEHTHLT AR MEF
adjusted for the share consolidation which came into effect on 26 HHERBROAHBPARE R2ZT=
May 2020. TFRAZFTRNBAEM-

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND 12. ESFMHREEMS

EMOLUMENTS OF EMPLOYEES

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION BE=5M

Directors’ emoluments are as follows: EEMEemT:

Allowances
and other Retirement
benefits scheme Total
Fees Salaries Bonuses inkind contributions  emoluments
ERHREAM
Fik ¥¢ A ENEN  BAGHEMT “ape

Year ended 31 December 2020 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

BE-_Z-ZE+-A=1+-BIEE ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR

Executive directors: BES:

Mr. Liu Rongru BEmEkE - 1,681 - - 7 1,688
Ms. Li Jiayin FEELL S 536 45 S 16 597
- 2,217 45 - 23 2,285

Non-executive director FHTES:

Mr. Li Dongfan (Note 5) ERALE (F3E5) - 857 446 - 16 1,319

Independent non-executive directors: ~ BUIFHTEE:

Mr. Liu Dajin ARELE 89 - - - - 89
Mr. Chen Sze Hung (Note 6) Wik LA (W 3E6) 3 S S S = 3
Mr. Pang Wai Ching YRIELE 161 - - - - 161
Mr. Liu Junting (Note 7) SRR L E (F37) 43 S = = = 43
296 - - - - 296

Total st 296 3,074 491 - 39 3,900

HEMEEEERAT | —E_TFFEHRE
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12.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND 12. ESFMREEMNES &

EMOLUMENTS OF EMPLOYEES - continued N

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION - continued EEHFM-&

Allowances
and other Retirement
benefits scheme Total
Fees Salaries Bonuses inkind  contributions  emoluments
RHEREM
e He bl EWMEFR  RIRETEIf @ie

Year ended 31 December 2019 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

BE_Z-NE+-A=1+-HIEE AREFL AREFTL ARETTL AREFIL ARETTL ARETTL

Executive directors: BIES:

Mr. Liu Rongru 2% mE s = 1,093 = = 10 1,103
Mr. Jiang Dehua (Note 1) BEEss (f) = 780 = = 10 790
Mr. Chak Chi Shing (Note 2) BEBEE (F32) - 297 - S 1 308
Ms. Li Jiayin TEERL - 165 - - 5 170

- 2,335 - - 36 2,37

Independent non-executive directors:  BUFHITES:

Mr. Huang Xingluan (Note 3) BERELE (F33) 52 - - - S 52
Mr. Liu Dajin ARERE 89 - - - - 89
Mr. Chen Sze Hung (Note 6) BT (Hise) 43 = = = = 43
Mr. Pang Wai Ching YRIEEE 32 - - - - 32
Ms. Cheng Shing Yan (Note 4) BRmut (Hka) 107 S S S S 107

323 - - - - 323

Total Fehy 323 2,335 - - 36 2,694

Notes: B 3

(1) Mr. Jiang Dehua was appointed as the executive director of the (1) BEELAEA T RNFHA+ AR
Company with effect from 11 April 2016 and resigned as the BEERERRRHITEERE-ZT—N
executive director of the Company with effect from 6 August 2019. FNANHRETIARAMITES -

(2) Mr. Chak Chi Shing was appointed as the executive director of the (2) BEBEEE T - N\F+-_FAAAR
Company with effect from 5 December 2018 and resigned as the BEERARRATEERE=-ZT—N
executive director of the Company with effect from 9 September FNANBRETIARAMITES -
2019.

(3) Mr. Huang Xingluan was appointed as the independent non- (3) EESEE T —+FAZT=H
executive director with effect from 22 June 2017 and resigned as the BEZEARBIFATEERE=-F
independent non-executive director with effect from 9 July 2019. —NFtANBEBEBLIFENTE

=

(4) Ms. Cheng Shing Yan was appointed as the independent non- (4) HERZTE-_T—tFENA-+=-H
executive director with effect from 22 June 2017 and resigned as REZERBIUFNTEERE_Z
the independent non-executive director with effect from 19 October —NFTATNBEBEBLFNTE
2019. E X

(5) Mr. Li Dongfan was appointed as the non-executive director of the (5) FTRANAEEZTS-TF-—ATHBER
Company with effect from 14 January 2020. BEERAARIERITES-

(6) Mr. Chen Sze Hung was appointed as the independent non- (6) RETHE A T NhE+ANBRE
executive director with effect from 9 July 2019 and resigned as the ZRAABUINTEERBE T -ZF
independent non-executive director with effect from 14 January — A+ HREEEILIENITES
2020.

(7) Mr. Li Junting was appointed as the independent non-executive (7) AEEAE T _TF—A+THBER

director of the Company with effect from 14 January 2020.

HREAEEEERAT | —E_ZFFEHRE
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12.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
EMOLUMENTS OF EMPLOYEES - continued
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION - continued

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.
The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services as directors of the Company
or its subsidiaries. The independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were mainly for their services as
directors of the Company.

No director received any emoluments from Group as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019. No director waived or agreed
to waive any emoluments for the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019.

THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are analysed as
followed:

12.

EEFMREESME -&

E=yM-&

EXRRRTESHE DEBERFE
BERERARRRASEEZHREAE
e EXHIRFRNTESTME TR
HEFEREETARRRENBRAES
B - EXPIRBUATEEME
DEBRREEEARREETARM-

BE_Z-_ZFR-_ZT—-NF+=A
—t+—HLEFE SEESRALAEE
WIRERMESERBBMAREE
HIMAREE BB LEE - &¢E%£
BUM@GE-BE_ZT-_FF k=

—hWE+ZA=+— Etif‘ﬁﬁ
EENELRERERDREMME -

ANBSHFALT
HE-Z-_ZFK-_FT—hF+=A
—t+—BLEFEXAEBRRAUESEFA
THSTMT

2020 2019
—E-EE —NF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE A
Directors =% 3 3
Non-directors FE=E 2 2
5 5
Details of the remuneration of the above non-directors, the FTHRBEFT_EFR T —NF
highest paid individuals for the year ended 31 December +=—A=+— EIJJ:EFE’J SEHIEE
2020 and 2019 are as follows: FALTHHBMFELT -
2020 2019
RMB 000 RMB'000
AREBT R AREFIT
Salaries and other emoluments FTekEMME 1,792 1,623
Retirement scheme contribution EREH B 21 19
1,813 1,542
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12.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
EMOLUMENTS OF EMPLOYEES - continued

THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS - continued

The number of the highest paid non-directors fell within the
following emolument band:

EEFMREESME -&

AfUEREHAL-&
MeNFURTRINNZSFHIFEETA
T ARG

2020 2019
—B-%F _"T-hF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A8 N
Nil to HKD1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/8 T 1 2
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 L&
1,500,000/ 7T 1 =
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,0018 T2
2,000,000% 7T - -
2 2

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the non-
director highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of
office. There were no arrangements under which these
individuals waived or agreed to waive any emoluments for
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS

Emoluments paid or payable to members of senior
management, other than directors of the Company were
within the following bands:

BE_T_ZTER-_FT-NF+_A
=t —ALFE AEEHERIM
REHIFEEFALTINMES (ERE
ERIVNZN SETE RPN SETEE-3: 0k R
SERBERUNBE- BE_FT—
FEN_F-NE+-_A=+—H8L
FE BEZEALIRRLARERE
W B AT ] B <2 9 2 B o

BREEEMHS
ENKENARREZNISRER
ERENMETF A TR :

2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE A
Nil to HKD1,000,000 = %1,000,000/8 T 4 5
HKD1,000,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,000,001 L%
2,000,000% 7T - S
HKD2,000,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,000,001/8 0%
3,000,000/ 7T - S
4 b
PEASEEERAR | — S TFFERE
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13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ BERRKE
Electric Plant and Motor  Furniture and Leasehold  Right-of-use
equipment machinery vehicles equipment  improvement assets Total
ENRE  BEREE RE  BERRE HENERE  ERAREE @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AREBTR ARETr ARBTn ARETRT AR¥ETRT ARETR
Cost: RA:
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-h%-A-8 7159 24,839 350 4,043 1,400 5,684 43,475
Additions RE 5 S = 4 40,000 896 40,900
Disposal fe - - (21) - - (2,184) (2,205)
At 31 December 2019 RZB-NE+ZA=1-H 7159 24,839 329 4,047 41,400 4,396 82,170
Additions HE S S = 264 3,435 4,052 7751
Disposal fe - - - - - (253) (253)
At 31 December 2020 RZE-FF+-A=1+-H 7159 24,839 329 4,31 44,835 8,195 89,668
Accumulated depreciation and RHFERAE:
impairment:
At 1 January 2019 R=E-h%-A-A 1,131 979 317 334 17 - 2878
Depreciation charge for the year FRATE R 2,230 2,683 7 742 5,133 1,404 12,199
Eliminated on disposals HERYH - - (20) = - (243) (263)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=1+-H 3,361 3,662 304 1,076 5,250 1,161 14,814
Depreciation charge for the year FRFE R 2,230 2,683 7 806 9,359 2,368 17453
Eliminated on disposals B 8 - - - - - (253) (253)
Impairment charge for the year (Note) ~ F R E&T 1 (i) - 675 - = = = 675
At 31 December 2020 W-E-ZF+-A=1+-H 5,591 7020 3N 1,882 14,609 3,276 32,689
Net book value: REEE:
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-FF+-A=1+-H 1,568 17819 18 2,429 30,226 4919 56,979
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+t-A=+-H 3,798 1177 25 297 36,150 3,235 67356

Note:  For impairment assessment, the Group assess the recoverable
amount of property, plant and equipment with reference to the
higher of the assets’ fair value less cost to disposal and value in
use. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. As a result,
the Group made an impairment loss of approximately RMB675,000
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual values.

HESEMERAT | — - FFEERS
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13.

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - continued 13.

ME - BERERE-&

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS EREEE
Motor Office and
vehicles factory Property Total
AE BAERERE LY Fo
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETET
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NIF
—H—H - 5,555 129 5,684
Additions wNE - 896 - 896
Depreciation e - (1,354) (50) (1,404)
Early termination of lease (Note) 1RF & ILFE (HfzE) - (1,941) - (1,941)
As at 31 December 2019 and N_E—NF
1 January 2020 +-—A=+—H8K
—EETF
—H—H - 3,156 79 3,235
Additions NE 1,830 2,222 - 4,052
Depreciation e (458) (1,860) (50) (2,368)
At 31 December 2020 RZZEZEF
+=—A=+—8H 1,372 3,518 29 4,919
Note: The Group has early terminated a 5-year lease of factory during the HeE: RAFE FAEERRELLE—BEZ
year. AFHEE-
DEPOSITS PAID TO SUPPLIERS 14. XFFHEBZEZS
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T
Non-current asset IERBEE
Deposit for seafood business BEEK 2 ES 1,479 5,746
Current assets MENEE
Deposit for fast moving consumer REBEBEMEB 2EE
business 3,370 -
Deposit for seafood business BEEK 2 ES 4,451 -
7,821 -

The balance represents the earnest money paid to the
suppliers for procurement of fast moving consumer goods
and fishermen for securing their long term supply of the
marine raw materials amounting to RMB3,370,000 and
RMBb5,930,000 respectively as at 31 December 2020
(2019:Nil and RMBb5,746,000 respectively). The deposits
are unsecured, interest-free and the balances are subject
to a repayable upon termination of the contracts in 2021
and 2022. During the year, impairment loss on deposits
paid to suppliers amounting to RMB17000(2019: reversal of
RMB130,000) was recognised (Note 9).

A EEEERAT | — 2B EEERE

EHEST N THRERUKEBREEE
mEIATFRARMESREEGERM
HHENAES R-E-_TF+=
A=+—B% 5 & ARK®3,370,000
7T & AR #5,930,000t (ZE— AN
FoRl AT R ARKS,746,0000T) ©
e AERBREE MEHRE
REHNR T —FR-_E - _FK
HREE-RNAFE XN THERS
e 2 REEEARE170007T (=
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15. INVENTORIES FE
2020 2019
—EEE —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARET T
Raw materials R# 2,796 15,064
Finished goods SR 72,656 64,042
75,452 79,106

During the year, written-down of inventories amounting
to RMB2,105,000 has been made in 2020 (2019: nil) and
recognised in other expenses in consolidated profit or loss.

FR ZE_EFEEFEMEAR
#2,105,0007T (ZE— 1 ) WL
AEZANEMEFE S R

Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the

Group's gross trade receivables are as follows:

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES g 5 EWRIE
2020 2019
—EEF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR AR¥TT
Trade receivables 2 5 WA

- Sale of marine products —HEKER 129,232 103,566

— Procurement and sales of fast moving  —HRENHEERFHEE R
consumer goods and others K H A 8,830 =
138,062 103,566
Less: impairment loss (note 33(b)) R EEE (M1EE33(b)) (4,580) (1,288)
133,482 102,278

REZZAH AKENE S EEK

TRBBRE DT

2020 2019

—EoSE —ET—hEF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR TR AREF T

0 — 30 days 0%230H 20,677 40,754
31 - 60 days 31%£60H 24,847 36,638
61 — 90 days 61290H 18,747 22,643
91 - 120 days 912 120H 11,515 3,631
121 — 365 days 1212365 H 62,276 -
138,062 103,566
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16.

17.

TRADE RECEIVABLES - continued 16. % SEWRE &
The movement in the allowance for impairment of trade g5 RWE IEHTEEW%H']“@JZZDT :
receivables is as follows:
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hnF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARETFTT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HBWERAEE 1,288 437
Impairment losses recognised ERRAREEE 3,292 851
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—HBHEEE 4,580 1,288
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade BEERE ”’%rﬂﬁl X IH H AR [ {8
receivables approximate their fair values. N ERAE
DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 17. B BENAREREMERR
RECEIVABLES
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR T ARBTT
Non-current assets RBEE
Rental deposits Heke 477 =
Prepayments — Note (iii) TE A 3 — M 5 (i) 3,500 3,150
3,977 3,150
Current assets REEE
Amount due from a related party — Note (i) J& 438 3E 75 5038 — i 5 (1) 36 36
Amount due from a director — JE Y = FE — B RE (i) 2,389 1,252
VAT receivables JE Y B 536 =
Prepayment — Note (iii) TEAS 3k — B R Gii) 3,213 5,976
Other receivable Hth & YR IR 218 994
6,392 8,268

(i) The balance represents a rental deposit paid to a company, which
is controlled by the spouse of a director who is also the controlling
shareholder of the Company. The balance is unsecured, interest-free,
and repayable upon the end of lease term in December 2021.

(i) The balance represents amount due from a director who is also the
controlling shareholder of the Company. The balances are unsecured,
interest-free, and repayable on demand, and the maximum amount
outstanding during the year was RMB2,389,000.

(iii) The non-current portion of the balance as at 31 December 2020
represents prepayment for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment. The current portion of the balance as at 31 December
2020 mainly represents prepayment of advertising and promotion
fees, for which the services will be provided subsequent to the end
of the reporting period.

HETEEEARA
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18.

19.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18. RERREEEY
At 31 December 2020, cash and cash equivalents in RZEZTEF+A=+—H &8
the amount of RMB345,000 (2019: RMB159,000), AN R¥345,000T (ZE—NF: A
RMB209,227,000 (2019: RMB242,419,000) and R #159,0007T) + A R #209,227000
RMB3,907,000 (2019: Nil) are denominated in HK$, RMB T (ZZE—NF: AR%242,419,000)
and USD respectively. The cash and cash equivalents M AR#3,907000t (Z 2 — L &F:
denominated in RMB are deposited in the PRC in the TIMNRERFEBWHRIAB T A
ordinary course of business. RMB is not a freely convertible RENETFTE - EEEEBKBARES
currency and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is NARBFENRERASEEDT
subject to the relevant rules and regulations of foreign BMRAFH ARBIIFETERLERDN
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government. BB REE©E R BIRINZ BB
S 98 45 2 AB A HNE B I B9 3R Bl A 3R
FIr 53 BR o
TRADE PAYABLES 19. EFEMNFE
2020 2019
—E-EF —ZE-hnF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARET T
Trade payables =) ANE
— Purchase of marine products — IR KE @ 7443 8,716
— Purchase of fast moving consumer goods — £ B [ 3 5H & & 8,910 =
16,353 8,716

The credit terms of trade payables vary according to the
terms agreed with different suppliers, normally 30 — 60
days. Based on the receipt of services and goods, which
normally coincide with the invoice dates, the ageing analysis
of the Group's trade payables as at 31 December 2020 and
2019 are as follows:

EHRENFENEEHRTFERNR
HERBENIERIMBITR  — &
AHIB0E60R - IR — AL 3 = A 8
ERMREEEREWRB S KEE
RZBE_ZEFR_ZF—NF+=A
Zt+—HHEZENRBEBNER DT
o

2020 2019

—E-®BF —T-h%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARE TR ARETFTT

0 - 30 days 0£30H 11,060 8,716
31 - 60 days 31260H 5,293 -
16,353 8,716

The trade payables are short-term and hence the carrying
values of the Group’s trade payables are considered a
reasonable approximate of fair value.

HESEMERAT | — - FFEERS
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20. ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND OTHER 20. EFER - CWZRERHEMENS
PAYABLES ME

2020 2019

—g-8% C—T-nF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARETTT

Accruals and other payables Note (i) FEET B R & H Ath FE S 5RI8
— () 4,231 3,679
Deposit received BUWEUE & 849 1,789
Other tax payables H b A F 18 64 521
Salaries payables JENTE 4,268 3,229

Payable for acquisition of property, BEME BEK

plant and equipment REN RN A 3,550 3,550
Amount due to a related company-Note (i) F& 1< B4 2 7 708 — Bt 5% (i) 2,505 =
15,467 12,668

i) The balance mainly represents accrued audit fee of RMB916,000 i)
(2019: RMB966,000) and accrued union fee of RMB1,506,000 (2019:
RMB1,186,000).

i) The balance represents amount due to a related company, which is ii)
controlled by Mr. Li Dongfan. Mr. Li is the non-executive director of
the Group. The balance is unsecured, interest-free, and repayable on
demand, and the maximum amount outstanding during the year was
RMB2,505,000.

EhE ZIEE BB AR 916,000
7T (20194 : A R #966,0007T ) & fE 5T
Te#%AR1,5060005T (20194 : A
R#1,186,0007T) °

EHRRENBERARMNNIEA ZARA
FRALEEERG - FERERAEEFFH
TEZ-HHABEM REREEX
HE FARSAEERARARYE
2,505,0007T °

21. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 21. ERHKREFEFE

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of REERFENEES BT EBRTEE
the state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated WBEREBRABAGEAKE K
by the PRC government. The Group’s PRC companies are SEMNFBEARBREEFHOE T
required to contribute certain percentage of their payroll to Bt MR KRR G 8 50 iR 4
the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The EHBNMNE2 ASEBBRNE
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement Farsl M — & X2 BRIBFTSEL AT
benefit schemes is to make the required contributions under T

the schemes.
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22.

(B B BRI UAREDIR)

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 22, BEEBREEE
Details of the deferred tax assets recognised and EAMNTFERRACEERBEER
movements during the current and prior year are as follows: HEg o HENT:
Depreciation
on
right-of-use Impairment
asset and Impairment loss on
interest Impairment loss on deposit
on lease loss on loan trade paid to
liabilities receivables receivables suppliers Total
EREEE X[F
ZHER ES R 2
HEGEz EUEXRZ EWXEZ A
FE HEBE BEEE HEBE #st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTT ARETTT
At 1 January 2019 R-ZE-h&—HA—-H - 76 109 9 281
(Charged)/credited to profitor  (#1% &), /3 A
loss for the year FREE (13) (76) 212 (32) 91
At 31 December 2019 and R-E-NE
1 January 2020 +-A=+t-8kK
“8-%%-A-H (13) - 321 64 372
(Charged)/credited to profitor (1% &),/ 5 A
loss for the year FRBE (3) = 357 5 359
At 1 January 2020 R-ZZ2-Z5-H-H (16) - 678 69 731

The carry forward of tax losses in Hong Kong generally
has no time limit, while the tax losses in PRC amounting
to RMB29,823,000 will expire, if unused, in 2021 to 2025.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
certain unused tax losses amounted to RMB79,903,000
(2019:RMB42,034,000) due to no assessable profits of
the Company and subsidiaries. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
differences as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary difference
can be utilised.

No deferred tax liability has been recognised on certain
temporary differences of RMB324,325,000 (2019:
RMB346,752,000) relating to the undistributed earnings
of foreign subsidiaries because the Group is in a position
to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that such differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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23.

SHARE CAPITAL 23.
2020 2019
s i —T-NF
Number Amount Number Amount
A -] £ =] Ex
Notes ‘000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB'000
iz TR AR%¥Txn TR ARETT
Authorised: JETE
At 1 January »w—HA—H 10,000,000 87,412 10,000,000 87412
Share consolidation f& 10 & O (i) (9,000,000) - - -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 1,000,000 87412 10,000,000 87412
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
Number Amount Number Amount
A -] 28 Ex
Notes ‘000 RMB’'000 ‘000 RMB'000
By & TR AR%¥Txn TR ARETT
Issued and fully paid: BEETREE:
At 1 January n—H—H 1,000,000 8,723 1,000,000 8,723
Share consolidation & & ot (i) (900,000) s = =
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 100,000 8,723 1,000,000 8,723
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive LB E AR EE KR EIRA AR
dividends as declared from time to time, and are entitled to BYRARTARNE ERERBRMNDE
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. —EREE-
Note: B & -

(i) On 25 May 2020, the share consolidation resolution has been passed (i)

by the Company's shareholders in the AGM. On 26 May 2020, every
ten issued and unissued shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital
of the Company were consolidated into one consolidated share of
HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company. The authorised
share capital of the Company became HK$100,000,000 divided into
1,000,000,000 consolidated shares of par value of HK$0.10 each, of
which 100,000,000 consolidated shares of par value of HK$0.10 each
was in issue.
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HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

24 ZR A F 2 B BT R

POSITION
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
B 2 AREFT AREF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries BB ARNKRE 347 694
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayment and other receivables — FE{ Z 18 & H b & U Z008 481 2,502
Amounts due from subsidiaries NGRS (i) 107,381 104,763
Amount due from a director FEUE = IR (i) 1,252 1,252
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEESEEY 186 141
109,300 108,658
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Accruals, deposits received and JEETEA clRe &
other payables H b &5 3R 4,422 4,782
Debentures EH 6,287 =
Tax payables FET A IR - 248
10,709 5,030
NET CURRENT ASSETS BERBEE 98,591 103,628
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Debentures E% 6,959 =
NET ASSETS FEE 91,979 104,322
CAPITAL AND RESERVE BEARR HE
Share capital &N 23 8,723 8,723
Reserves i (i) 83,256 95,599
TOTAL EQUITY 48 1% R 91,979 104,322
On behalf of the board of directors REESFS
Mr. Liu Rongru Ms. Li Jiayin
Mk E TEFTLT
Director Director
EZ 2
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24,
POSITION - continued

HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the year are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of this report.

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

20 ZRDTF2HBMRAEK - &

AEBAFENRESBEMESHE
MERNREGAEREHRPIR-

B 5 -
The amounts due from subsidiaries and amount due from a director (i) BURKBARRBRERESERELE
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. B 2 REEREE-
Movements in reserves of the Company (ii) NN =
Foreign
currency
Share translation Retained Total
premium reserve earnings reserves
A3 R E SERERE REEF ke
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT AREFT AREFT
Balance at 1 January 2019 R-E-hE-R-Bz&&H 138,185 728 (42,156) 96,757
Loss for the year FRBE - - (3,337) (3,337)
Exchange differences arisingon HBEELZEXZHE
translation - 2,179 - 2,179
Balance at 31 December 2019 R=-ZE-hf+-A=+-HEK
and 1 January 2020 —E-2E-F-BziH 138,185 2,907 ((45,493)) 95,599
Loss for the year ENER - - (7,575) (7575)
Exchange differences arisingon #EE4 ZEX =5
translation - (4,768) = (4,768)
Balance at 31 December 2020 R-Z-Zf+-A=+-H
k-0 138,185 (1,861) (53,068) 83,256

The aggregate amounts of reserves available for distribution to
equity shareholders of the Company were RMB85,117,000 (2019:

RMB92,692,000).

A EEEERAT | — 2B EEERE

AEIEFARABEZRENFEEECEAAR
#85,117,0007C (= Z — hF : AR#92,692,000
JT) e
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25. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 25. AMBARMNKRE
The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries TREVEAEEEE EEXART
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities BEAFYENMBLARFBE -BK5EE
of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless HERN RROBE B -
otherwise stated.
Place of
incorporation Issued % of ownership Principal
Name of subsidiary and operation share capital interest activities
) PNEEEE MR REEnE SRTRK %EEER TEEH
2020 2019
“E-EF ZZ-NF
Xiamen Wofan Foodstuff The People’s Republic  RMB91,066,872 Indirectly Indirectly Packaging and sale of
Company Limited 2 of China 100% 100%  seafood products
EFAERmERDA"? hEARAME ARM¥91,066,872  MERE MERE BRERHEBER
100% 100%
Fujian Wofan Foodstuff The People’s Republic  RMB10,000,000 Indirectly Indirectly Packaging and sale of
Company Limited" ? of China 100% 100%  seafood products
BREREAMARAR]"2 hEARAME AK®10,000,000t HERE AERE BRRHEEEER
100% 100%
Hanzhong Trading Co., Limited Hong Kong HKD1,000,000 Indirectly Indirectly Procurement and
100% 100%  sales of fast moving
consumer products
BEEHERRA i 1,000,000/ 7T BERE AERE REEERNEKBRE
100% 100% &
Note 1: These companies are registered as wholly foreign owned enterprises e ZEAREREPEZEZFMAIINGE
under the law of PRC. BdE-
Note 2: These companies are limited liability companies in the PRC. M2 ZERRARTPENEREERF -
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26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 26. BEIRS
(A)  Saved as disclosed elsewhere in these financial (A) KBREZEVEBRERSEEESEN
statements, during the year, the Group entered into RERN NEBEEBESFII
the following transactions with related parties. LATRAZ 5 o

Balance outstanding owed/

Transaction amount (owing)
ReeE 1R &R
Related party identity
and relationship Type of transaction 2020 2019 2020 2019
BEranhRkER XHEH “E2-%2F TN ZBIEF _Z-NF

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRL  AREBTT  AR®TR  ARETR

Xiamen Yehong Foodstuffs Right-of-use asset

Company Limited*, FREEE 186 186 186 382

a company which is controlled Lease liabilities

by the spouse of the major ~ HHEEE 14 23 (195) (391)

shareholder who is also Rental deposit

a director HE&e
EMEARRBRAF:

—HHEERR (NAES)

ZEBEHE A E - - 36 36

200 209 27 27

Mr. Liu Rongjian*, Purchase - cost of sales

Cousin of Mr. Liu Rongru <Note>
AREEE RE—HER A<M

BEMEENERSR 576 622 - (47)
Mr. Liu Rongzhong* Purchase - cost of sales

Cousin of Mr. Liu Rongru <Note>
RBEE RE—HENR<HE>

ARMEENERSR 644 696 (6) (41)
E The English name is translated for identification purpose e ERENRXEZBEERZA

only. e

Note: B & -
The terms and conditions of amounts due from related company are FE U B8 E A R FRUIA MR SR R AR A BT 5E
disclosed in note 17(i). The credit period for purchases from related 170FEFEZ -REE T EEEENE
parties is 30 days from invoice date. The outstanding payables are EHAERZABEII0K . M REEDN
interest-free and unsecured. The directors confirm that the above ERREASEEEER -FEEHRE
purchase transactions were entered into with trading terms similar MBERSIRMAE=FEI L MBELUR
to those with independent third parties. SIERETL
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26.

27.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - continued 26, BAEIRZ &
(B) COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT (B) TEEBEASFM
PERSONNEL
The remuneration of directors for the year are set out EERTFEHFNEINAT
below:
2020 2019
—E_EHF —E-hEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET R AREFIT
Short-term benefits EEIE A 3,861 2,658
Contribution to retirement RIREFIFIEIH R
benefit scheme 39 36
Total 4B 3,900 2,694

The emoluments for the year of senior management

YHARBEZNRREEE

who are not directors of the Company are set out RAFEHMNOT :
below:
2020 2019
—E-FF —T—NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE TR AREFIT
Short-term benefits EEREA 580 1,904
Contribution to retirement ROREFET B3
benefit scheme 19 41
Total @t 599 1,945
LEASES 27. HE

The Group leases a number of properties in the jurisdictions
in which it operates. Rental contracts are typically made
for fixed periods of 2 years to 10 years, no extension and
termination options exercisable by the Group or the lessors
were stated in the contracts.

NATURE OF LEASING ACTIVITIES

The group leases a number of properties for the purpose of
office and factory storage and motor vehicles for shipping
products.

A EEEARAT | — PP EEERE

AEBREZEMENAAEREE
ZEYME-MEGNHMR —REER
2R E10F REEAKERHEAL
BHRIREE - FAITELER MK IEE
-

HEZTSHMME
AEBAETETYE ARPAE
MIMGFREARESERITE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

27. LEASES - continued 27. HE-&
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS ERAEEE
Right-of-use assets related to leased properties that do not TEREMETCENHEMEER
meet the definition of investment property is presented as MNEREEEEY ADE BERK
property, plant and equipment (note 13), the analysis of the # (5E13) IR EEERE S K
net book value by class of underlying asset is as follows: EEFEINET:
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NF
+t=A=t+—-HB +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AREFT
Motor vehicles carried at BT EKARTBRR )7 E
depreciated cost 1,372 -
Office and factory carried at EITERAS R
depreciated cost WAER TR 3,518 3,156
Properties carried at depreciated cost &7 E K ANFI BR Y ) % 29 79
Total FEES 4,919 3,235
Payments associated with short-term leases of vehicles HEHAEHEEENTRNERR
are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense HEth2HMBERPIEEREERSH
in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive Yo-mHHERATEBEEEERANM
income. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of BHEREAKNANEE-HETE
12 months or less without a purchase option. The leases do SEMAEEENK

not contain any variable lease payments.

LEASE LIABILITIES HERE
Office and

factory Motor vehicles Total
BAEREE RE Mgt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFTT ARETT
Balance as at 1 January 2019 R-E-NE-A—-Hz#&H 5,555 - 5,555
Additions NE 896 - 896
Interest expense FEXH 221 = 221
Lease payments HERR (1,480) - (1,480)
Early termination of lease RELLHEE (1,964) - (1,964)

Balance as at 31 December 2019 and R=ZE—- A F+=-A=+—H

1 January 2020 R-E-ZF-F-HZ&ERK 3,228 - 3,228
Additions NE 2,222 870 3,092
Interest expense FEXH 195 20 215
Lease payments MERR (2,124) 20 (2,104)
Balance as at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-EF+=-A=+—H

2 3,521 910 4,431
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

27. LEASES - continued
LEASE LIABILITIES - continued
Future lease payments are due as follows:

HE-&
HEARE-&
REFEEN KB RIT2IH -

Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
REAEMNN FE RE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTT ARBTT
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-ZF¥+-A=+—H

Not later than one year TER—F 3,114 (198) 2,916

Later than one year and BR—FRENERME
not later than two years 1,674 (523) 1,151

Later than two years and BRMEETERAF
not later than five years 365 (1) 364
5,153 (722) 4,431

As at 31 December 2019 R-E-AE+=A=+—H

Not later than one year T\ N —F 1,194 (129) 1,065

Later than one year and BR—FETERWE
not later than two years 1,118 (80) 1,038

Later than two years and BRMEEIERBE
not later than five years 1,169 (44) 1,125
3,481 (253) 3,228

The total cash outflows for leases including payment
of lease liabilities, payment of interest expenses and
operating lease rental in respect of short-term leases for
the years end 31 December 2020 was RMB2,611,000 (2019:
RMB2,805,000).

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases
are as follows:

BE_Z-_ZF+_A=+—HILF
EX uﬂﬂ EaEMR - BHEEHA
ENAMERSTMELHERS AN
HEReREAREAARE?2,611,000
T(ZE—hF: AR%2,805,000
JC) °

AEERBEEEROREBNAT

2020 2019

—EEHF —ZT-NEF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR T AR¥TT

Interest on lease liabilities HEBEBECFE 215 221

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets {FHAREEE 2 E 2,368 1,404
Operating lease rental in respect of KEFHECHAENHEERS

short-term leases 507 1,325

Total amount recognised in profit or loss R IB#E R IER 2 484 3,090 2,950

OPERATING LEASES - LESSOR

The Group has sub-lease arrangement of properties with
independent farmers. During the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019, rental income from the sub-leases were
RMB55,000 and RMB55,000 respectively.

wEFE-HAEA
AEBEHAFTE DY E
ZH-BE_ZT_F i&_i NF
+-A=+—BLFERESHENHE
S WAD R A ARESS000T AR
#55,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

27. LEASES - continued

27.

OPERATING LEASES - LESSOR - continued
The minimum rent receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases are as follows:

HE-&

CEHEE-HBAA-E
TAHENEEHE T RER KA
T

2020 2019
—EB-EF —E-NnF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARET T
Not later than one year TER—F 31 55

Later than one year and BR—FETNERMF
not later than two years - 31
31 86

28. DEBENTURES 28. &%
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREF T
Balance at 1 January R—A—Bz#&tk 900 =
Addition NE 19,776 900
Repayment BN (6,967) =
Interest expenses MERZ 229 =
Exchange difference & =% (692) =
Balance at 31 December RT+ZA=+—H2Zz&&% 13,246 900
Represented by: Rk

Current portion B ER&f 5 6,287 =
Non-current portion JERNEREL & 6,959 900
13,246 900

Interest expense on the debenture is calculated by applying
the interest rate, which range from 0.1% to 10% per annum
(2019: 5%), to the carrying amount of debentures.

The Group entered into 11 additional agreements amounting
to HKD 21,950,000 (equivalent to RMB19,597000). The
debentures are bearing interest at rates ranging from 0.1%
to 10% per annum (2019: 5%), unsecured and repayable
ranging from 4 months to 8 years (2019: 8 years).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
has repaid a total amount of HKD7800,000 (equivalent to

RMB6,967,000).

A EEEERAT | — 2B EEERE
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BHEZANERIENT01%E10%
(ZZE—NF 5% ) Z2FFRFEUE
A ZRMAEE-

AEEBTIIOBEIINGE ©8A
21,950,000 T (ME R AR
19,597.0007C) * EHEN TF01% =
10% (ZE—NEFE:5% )2 FHMN=E:t
B IR N BN F4E B E8FE (=
T—NF8F)MEBIRAEE-

BE-_Z-_ZTF+_-_A=+—801t&F
B AREEEEE#%7800,000%8 T
(FHE R AR®6,967.0007T) °
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

29.

30.

COMMITMENTS 29. EiIE
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS B AREIE
Capital expenditure contracted at the end of the year but RERDFTHWERNREECELRRE
not yet incurred is as follows: /N
2020 2019
—ECEF —ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AR¥TT
Property, plant and equipment Y BERZE 3,450 -
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND 30 EXEREEBRERER

PROCEDURES

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
net of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
reserves and retained profits, respectively.

The directors of the Company reviews the capital structure
on a continuous basis taking into account the cost of capital
and the risk associated with the capital. The Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new shares issue and share buy-back as well as
the issue of new debts or redemption of existing debt, if
necessary.

Management regards total equity as capital. The amount
of capital as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 amounted
to approximately RMB450,227000 and RMB477831,000,
respectively, which the management considers as optimal
having considered the projected capital expenditures and
the projected strategic investment opportunities.

HETEREARAR | T _TFFERSE

AEBEEHEARUBRAEEND
EREEESELEZ AREBEL
B M REGARERS R DR -

AEBWENEBBBERFRE (11
BRRELRSFEY) RARAER
ANBEBE (DR BEE HITRA
AR EF) o

AEBHRR Uie EERNER-
AEBEGERIRMNBE BITHHRN
RELED UEBETHERSED
REBR(NERE) UNFEHHEER
BAERE-

ERHEEREABEBRAER-R_T
“EFER-_E-NF+-_A=+—8"
BAREEED R4 AREA50,2270007T
N # N R #447831,0007T 0 BB E K
= EIE A E AR S K T8 B 5 RS 1 A
% REBASERKEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

31.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 3. REFEINEREERSHE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BHME
The following table shows the carrying amount of financial TREINEMEERAGBNEREE:
assets and liabilities:
2020 2019
—EC-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARET T

Financial assets EHmEE
— Cash and cash equivalents —ﬁ@&fﬁ(ﬁ%{gﬁ% 213,479 242,578
—Trade and other receivables — 8 5 & EAth B U R 137,138 104,560
- Deposits paid to suppliers X FH F’ﬁﬁﬁ’]?ﬁz% 9,300 5,746
359,917 352,884
Financial liabilities EA-3=NE
Amortised cost B 55K AR
—Trade and other payables —B S RHEMERKIA 31,756 21,763
— Debentures —&% 13,246 900
— Lease liabilities —~-HEaE 4,431 3,228
49,433 25,891
(A) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NOT MEASURED AT (A) YHFRAFEFTENEMIA
FAIR VALUE

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
include bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables,
interest-bearing borrowings and lease liabilities.

Due to their short term nature, the carrying values
of bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other receivables, trade and other payables
approximate their fair values.
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China Shenghai Group L|m|ted | Annual Report 2020
112

WIHRAFEFENSRTA
BRERROTER RERBASF
B 85 &EHE R KA

B 5 NH MR RIE u-|_1§1
ENEERE-

HREMEBEH  R1ITEFERX
ﬁé&iﬁ FEYW - BHRHE
it FE 5 3R IR fé%&ﬁﬁﬂf’éﬁ
FEMERESEFEESAN
NFERE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

32.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

32. RMEFHELANEEBEZIBR

Lease
Debentures liabilities Total
&% HESE st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBETIT ARET T
As at 1 January 2019 R=ZE-hF—-HF—H - 5,555 5,555
Change from financing cash flows: REMERERZEH:
— Issue of debentures —B1TEH 900 = 900
— Repayments % - (1,259) (1,480)
— Interest paid —BFE - (221) (221)
Total changes from financing cash flows XK BERMEBE &R
BEN B 900 (1,480) (580)
Other changes: Hih#a:
— Commencement of lease ~-HE MR = 896 896
— Finance costs — BB A - (1,964) (1,964)
- Effects of foreign exchange —INEZFE - 221 221
As at 31 December 2019 and RZE-L#F
1 January 2020 T=ZA=+t—-8BK
“E-25-H-H 900 3,228 4,128
Change from financing cash flows: REWMERERZE:
- Prepayment — N HIE - (960) (960)
- Repayments OES (6,967) (2,104) (9,071)
— Issue of debentures —BI1ES 19,776 = 19,776
- Interest paid —BFE (229) - (229)
Total changes from financing cash flows XK BEMEE &R 2
b Fk] 12,580 (3,064) 9,516
Other changes: Hih#s:
- Commencement of lease -HEZHRA = 4,052 4,052
— Finance costs — B ISR AR 229 215 444
- Effects of foreign exchange —INEZRE (463) - (463)
As at 31 December 2020 RZBEZZHF
+=-—A=+-—H 13,246 4,431 17677
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33. HM¥EREEEMNRBE
AND POLICIES
The Group’s major financial instruments include trade AEEMNFIESRTABIEEFHERK
receivables, other receivables, bank balances and cash, RIE - H AU GRIE - SRITHE BRI
trade payables, other payables, debentures and lease © BSEMNRIE EMEMNKE &
liabilities. sREERE-
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in ZESRMITAMNFBERSWZARE-
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial HZESRmT AEBBENERBIEN X
instruments include interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity B -EERBETBDESRR &
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out B RDRE R S R B R BUR S AT -
below. The directors of the Company manage and monitor ARARESEEMERZERR U
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are AR N B 0 B 380 E 1 38 18 e o
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
(A) INTEREST RATE RISK (A) F = & b
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from AEEMFERBREIEREE
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and HoBEBREEETHER
at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest FEAREE S REERR 2R E
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively. B & AFERERR A&
The Group's interest rate profile as monitored by ENFERBEEERBEE "
management is set out in (i) below IR T 32)
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FIZERE 1R
The following table details the interest rate TRHAINAEBR=F
profile of the Group's total borrowings at 31 —EFERZFE—NEF
December 2020 and 2019: TZA=+—HWM#ERE
RZFEIGR
2020 2019
It St 33 —E-NEF
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount  interest rate Amount
BBRA= S8 B A& &8
% RMB’000 % RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
Fixed rate borrowings: EEER:
Unsecured debentures EERESR 0.1%-10% 13,246 5% 900
Lease liabilities HERE 4.65%-5% 4,431 4.75% 3,228
Total net borrowings FET B 17,677 4,128
Net fixed rate borrowings & B(& 5 2%
as a percentage of total EFEREEN
net borrowings Bolt 100% 100%
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (ii)  BEEETH
At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group's RZE_ZEFR_F
total borrowings are fixed rate borrowings —WE+ZA=+—
therefore no sensitivity analysis is provided. B A"EEZERARE
Th7E BfE K A it I &
REFRE DT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

33.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES - continued
(B) CREDIT RISK

At the end of reporting period, the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statements of

financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of
the Company have delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action are taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the directors of the Company review
the recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivable at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the credit risk of the

Group is significantly reduced.

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to
its deposits paid to suppliers, trade receivables,
deposits, prepayments, amount due from a related
party, amount due from a director, other receivables
and cash deposits at banks. The carrying amounts
of deposits paid to suppliers, trade receivables,
deposits, amount due from a related party, amount
due from a director, other receivables and cash and
cash equivalents represent the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit
risk associated with cash deposits at banks since
they are substantially deposited at creditworthy
banks and financial institution with no recent history
of default. Management does not expect that there
will be any significant losses from non-performance
by these counterparties. The Group considers these
balances have low credit risk and the amount of the

loss allowance for impairment was negligible.

HETEREARAR | T _TFFERSE
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33.

BREAMREEENRBE-&

(B) fFEER
RBERR AEBRHHT
REBITEEMB A EBEBK
MBBRRNRAREERRBRKS
e M BRI S IAD #E

RERMEENKEE:-

REEREEERR ARA

E=CETEBARER

RE EEMZEEMERE
Fre ARERBRER IR £ 1T 2 Y@
BMEERE W ARAES
BB IAE 5 EUGRIAR | E
HISR ey mI e (@) & 58 - A RER 3L
AR Bl & R 3T 0 R E B
BBt "RAEERBR/E
A ERE AR B EEEE

AEEEGEEBEN THER
MRE BHREIER ZE-
T8 3RO - FE WA B U7 BROR
JE UL S 3R0R - H b B UK IR
ARIRITREFHRNEE RS
SNRERENRE BHE
WRR - =& - B AR B T 3K
B EERIE R
FEARBRE RBEFEDDH
REESASETREE M|

MRAEERR -

AEBEEHRITE S HFRALE
BEFEAR REARRETHF
RAARZHEHFREERIFAL
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ERERHREHTFOLES
EEARE TRERNEMFE
REBR - AEER/ZFHS
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES - continued

(B)

CREDIT RISK - continued

The credit risk of the Group is concentrated on trade
receivables from the Group's five largest customers
at 31 December 2020 and 2019 amounting to
RMB48,732,000 and RMB42,117,000, respectively,
and accounted for 35% and 35% of the Group's total
trade receivables. In order to minimise the credit risk,
the directors of the Company continuously monitor
the level of exposure by frequent review of the credit
evaluation of the financial condition and credit quality
of its customers to ensure that prompt actions will
be taken to lower exposure.

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of, a financial asset and whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk on
an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.
To assess whether there is a significant increase in
credit risk the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with
the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.
It considers available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. Especially the following
indicators are incorporated:

o internal credit rating
° external credit rating
o actual or expected significant adverse changes

in business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant change
to the debtor’s ability to meet its obligations

o actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the debtors

° significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the debtors,
including changes in the payment status of
debtors in the Group and changes in the
operating results of the debtors

33. HM¥EMEEAEMNRBE-

(B)

HETEREARAR | T _TFFERE
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

33.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33. M¥EREEENREBE-E&
AND POLICIES - continued
(B) CREDIT RISK - continued (B) fFERE-&
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group RZEZZEFRZT—NF
applies the general approach to provide for expected +ZA=+—H Xx&£BEKAHA
credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits BV B REERFEISRAMR
to recognize 12-month expected credit losses for EWM—REEMBHEEERX
deposits paid to suppliers, amount due from a TELBE Z A AR TR
director and other receivables. Trade receivables LEEENFES BRESK
applies the simplified approach to provide for TR A0 H fth FE YR i 3R 1218 A T8
expected losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which HEEEX -85 EKHKIER
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss REBY B HEERFEOHRAT
provision, which is calculated using a provision matrix. MERBE A ENGTIRIBHE
The provision matrix is based on the group’s historical K ZERRTFERAENS®
credit loss experience adjusted for assessment of BREBH 2EBSTRES
both the current and forecast general economic EEGE - HEEBENEE
conditions at the reporting date. As the Group's RFELEABRLEE I
historical credit loss experience does not indicate RS 5 B8 E /i fFER A —
different loss patterns for different subsidiaries, MAEAR R M A T E - R A
the loss allowance based on past due status is not SEMELEEBELRTE
further distinguished between the Group's different BRTRAMBARNTREE
subsidiaries. B AR AR AR B B 1R B
HYBREREETRNE AR
ZEE—FER -
The following table provides information about the TRREHEEHASEEERR
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade HEMEZEZRERBZBELIZINT
receivables and deposits paid to suppliers: HEBNZSNTEREEBR
&R
(i) Trade receivables (i) EBZEWE
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
2020 —E-EF loss rate amount allowance
EHEBERR HEREE EERE
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARETR
Current Ik 1.62% 57,333 (931)
1 - 30 days past due #HI1E30A 1.72% 18,461 (317)
31 - 60 days past due #HEI31260H 2.88% 11,795 (340)
61 - 90 days past due #159612900 3.01% 10,909 (328)
91 - 120 days past due #EI912120H 3.84% 10,722 (412)
More than 120 days BHI120H A £
past due 7.81% 28,842 (2,252)
138,062 (4,580)
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33. HXEREEENREEX-&
AND POLICIES - continued
(B) CREDIT RISK - continued (B) FEERM-&
(i) Trade receivables — continued (i) ESEWIE &
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
2019 —E-NEF loss rate amount allowance
TBEEEX BEREE BEEE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT AREFTT
Current B &R
0 - 30 days 0%£30H 0.41% 40,754 (165)
31 -60 days 31%60H 1.14% 36,638 (419)
61 - 90 days 61%290H 2.52% 22,643 (571)
91 - 120 days 91£120H 3.78% 3,631 (133)
103,566 (1,288)
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss BB EXRERES

experience over the past 5 years. These rates
are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and forward looking
information of the group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the

receivables.

Receivables that were past due but not
impaired related to a number of independent
customers that had a good track record
with the group. Based on past experience,
management believed that no impairment
allowance was necessary in respect of these
balances as there had been no significant
change in credit quality and the balances were
still considered fully recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

33.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33. HXEREEENREEX-&
AND POLICIES - continued
(B) CREDIT RISK - continued (B) fFERMK-&

(i)

Trade receivables — continued

The following significant changes in the
gross carrying amount of trade receivables
contributed to the increase in the loss
allowance for the year ended 31 December
2020:

- Decrease in trade receivables that
were current and not past due resulted
in an decrease in loss allowances of
RMB357,000.

- Increase in amounts past due over
0 days but within 30 days resulted
in an increase in loss allowances of
RMB317,000.

- Increase in amounts past due over
30 days but within 60 days resulted
in an increase in loss allowances of
RMB340,000.

- Increase in amounts past due over
60 days but within 90 days resulted
in an increase in loss allowances of
RMB328,000.

- Increase in amounts past due over
90 days but within 120 days resulted
in an increase in loss allowances of
RMB412,000.

- Increase in amounts past due over 120
days resulted in an increase in loss
allowances of RMB2,252,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33. HXEREEENREEX-&
AND POLICIES - continued
(B) CREDIT RISK - continued (B) FEERM-&
(ii)  Deposits paid to suppliers (i)  ZITFHREFHES

Gross

Expected carrying Loss

2020 —EZEF loss rate amount allowance

BEHERX HREE EiERE

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR TR AR TR

1 - 2 years to maturity BB E1 =20 2.83% 9,571 (271)
Gross

Expected carrying Loss

2019 —E-NEF loss rate amount allowance

EHBEE BRHEE BiEAE

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETTT ARET T

2 - 3 years to maturity BER|H2=34F 4.2% 6,000 (254)

Expected loss rates are based on the number
of years to maturity adjusted with forward
looking factor to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of
the deposits paid to suppliers.

The following significant changes in the gross
carrying amount of deposits paid to suppliers
contributed to the increase in the loss
allowance for the year ended 31 December
2020:

- Origination of new deposits paid to
suppliers resulted in an increase in loss
allowances of RMB17,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33. HXEREEENREEX-&
AND POLICIES - continued
(B) CREDIT RISK - continued (B) fFERMKE-&
(ii)  Deposits paid to suppliers — continued (i) :z"ﬁ%/ EEREE —
For other receivables and amount due from ﬁ O E h fE WK IR K e
a director, there were no significant increase WeEERIE - 5HERER
in credit risk since initial recognition. The B &V ERUAREZEHA
Group assessed the expected credit loss to be BN -AEBERATE
immaterial. HEEBBYTEK-
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the loss RZE_ZTFRZ
allowance provision for trade receivables and —NE+=ZAH= + —
deposits paid to suppliers reconciles to the B - RESERFIER
opening loss allowance for that provision as XA T HERN RS
follows: REEBEEEZEE
K HA Y BB B R E IR
LUNNE
Trade Deposits paid
receivables to suppliers Total
X FHER
5 EWRE ZEE 5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT ARBEFIT ARBTT
At 1 January 2019 RZE—-NF—A—H 437 384 821
Provision for loss allowance &2 &)/ 18 B & 851 - 851
Reversal of loss allowance 518 # & # @ - (130) (130)
At 31 December 2019 and RZT—NF
1 January 2020 TZA=+—8k
—T-Z5—-H—-H 1,288 254 1,542
Provision for loss allowance =12/ 18 B & 3,292 17 3,158
At 31 December 2020 R_ZB_ZTF
+ZA=+—H 4,580 271 4,851
As at 31 December 2020, the gross carrying RZZEZZEF+ A
amount of trade receivables and deposits =+—H BSRERKX
paid to suppliers were RMB138,062,000 and BRI HERZS

RMB9,571,000 thus the maximum exposure
to loss was RMB4,580,000 and RMB271,000
respectively.

(C) LIQUIDITY RISK
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the directors of the Company, which
has built an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Group's
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and
banking facilities.

138,062, 00075 MAR
#9,571,0007C ' & It &
AELXHBOS R AEAR
#4,580,0007C F1 A R &
271,0007T °

(C) H"BELER
ARREZAERBESAR
BEENRKEE REEREY
BENRDEARERER
NERAREENEH FHE
EHESURRBESEER
E-AKEBTEANFEER
RITHE  URBDHESER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

33.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES - continued

(C)

(D)

33. MBEBERENRBIE-&

LIQUIDITY RISK - continued (C) "RBEELEB-&
The following table details the Group's remaining TRAWAEBIETESHE
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial BEORBKRAEOIBA-ZERR
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on BASERREUWERENRE
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities ARemaERMBEREERE
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be BHE BEMNERASRERMN
required to pay. The table includes both interest and BE-RAERERZFBHNEM
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows FOAMBASERSEREHR
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived B2 BRI R E -
from current interest rate at the end of each reporting
period.
Total More than
contractual More than 2 years
Carrying  undiscounted ~ Within 1year 1 year but less but less More than
amount cash flow orondemand  than2years  than5 years 5 years
EHREE  ER-FRrd  -FULRE WMENLEE
FHE RERELE RERER NREE NAEE EENLEER
2020 —BCEE RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%TR AR%T R AR%T R ARETR ARETR ARET R
Non-derivatives: FIETE:
Trade payables EUY A0 16,353 16,353 16,353 = = =
Accruals, deposits received [zt FE MRS
and other payables REMERFHE 15,467 15,467 15,467 S S =
Debenture &% 13,246 17,039 6,632 424 1,21 8,712
Lease liabilities HEAR 4,431 5,153 3,115 1,674 364 -
49,497 54,012 41,567 2,098 1,635 8,712
Total More than
contractual More than 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted Within 1 year or 1 year but less less than More than
amount cash flow on demand than 2 years 5 years 5 years
ANREER  BER-FA%  —FUERE  MENLERE
FRE Ren2gm REKEER MR NREE RFNEER
2019 “Z-NE RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREBTT AREFTL ARBTT ARBT ARBTT
Non-derivatives: FHAETE:
Trade payables EV e 8,716 8,716 8,716 = S S
Accruals, deposits received [zt 3B MRS
and other payables REMERFHE 12,668 12,668 12,668 S S S
Debenture &% 900 1,209 45 45 134 985
Lease liabilities HERE 3,228 3,481 1,194 1,118 1,169 -
25,512 26,074 22,623 1,163 1,303 985
CURRENCY RISK (D) E¥REE
The Group mainly operated in the PRC with most AEBTERPHELE K%
of the transactions settled in RMB and did not have FRXRGUARBELEE BV E

significant exposure to risk resulting from changes in
foreign currency exchange rates.

HREAEEEERAT | —E_ZFFEHRE

China Shenghai Group Limited | Annual Report 2020

122

HiE RN EEREESHEHNE
KRR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

34. EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD AND EFFECT 34. BREHEERBERCOVID-19H7

OF COVID-19 -

(a) On 23 March 2021, the Company entered into a (a) RZE-_—F=A=_+=8"
Sales and Purchase Agreement with an independent AAaEBIE=F(EH])
third party (the “Vendor”), pursuant to which, the AVEBEWHE B BEAAEK
Vendor conditionally agreed to sell, and the Company HRELEmMARRBIEER
conditionally agreed to purchase, 51% shareholding in EEEBEQAST%EE R
the Target Company for a consideration of RMB19.7 ERAR®KI97EE L KA
million subject to and upon the terms of the Sale and BTEEMRBER -RZEFLR
Purchase Agreement. As at the date of approval of Ay KRR EE R WER
these consolidated financial statements, acquisition BARMAKRTAK WHEEIBEF
of the Target Company has not been completed. BERARTEPEAE=-TE=—
Details of the acquisition were set out in the FZAZ+=HHRE-
Company’s announcements dated 23 March 2021.

(b)  Following the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 b) RZZE-NBRRERR-Z
(“the COVID-19 Outbreak”) in early 2020, a series of ZEFFHEE ([COVID-19
precautionary and control measures have been and BB PEE2EE B E
continued to be implemented across the PRC, which BEER—RYFZEEE Z%
has affected the business and economic activities of BHEE—TRELEEIR
the Group to a certain extent. SEMEBREHEE -

In light of the negative impact brought upon by the EERCOVID-19/8 2 58 i A K
COVID-19 Outbreak in short term, it may lead to MBEFE HrJeEHaiE
increase of costs incurred by additional hygiene and MR FE B o N E A RS 2 3R
epidemic prevention requirements when rendering ERGEABINIEERDE
procurement and sales of fast moving consumer LR S| B AN g 00 - I B B EE
goods and others, as well as decrease or delay of EBERAMBKRARSERER
revenue from sales of marine goods due to various HIBR Bl N2 B 4 i A ST -
level of restrictions and controls.
The Group is in the opinion that any negative effect AEBRAECOVID- 198 A& E
brought by COVID-19 on the Group's business has (¥BTRNERNEAEZEER
already been reflected during the year 2020. If the TEEFER R INEE
epidemic remains stable, it does not expect to see REBE BHTeYHAEHE
further negative impact on the Group’s business after REBEE_Z_ZTFIFEEN
the year ended 2020. XBEKE—TEEEE-
35. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 35. H#LAESZESHEHRE

STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and HEVKBRERBEESN _ZTE-_—F

authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 March ZAZTNABHERIZETE-

2021.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EEMBRE

A summary of the results and assets, liabilities and equity of the
Group for the last five financial years is depicted below:

AEEBROIAAVRFEZE
RSB IR T :

HEE- A

RESULTS E¥
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ZBZBFf  _E-NE O ZE-N\f ZE+tF C"E-R%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETRH
Revenue [LON 162,718 472,888 667,958 644,407 468,039
Cost of sales HEMA (132,002) (369,119) (498,864 (480,901) (349,642)
Gross profit £ 30,716 103,769 169,094 163,506 118,397
Other income and other gains XL ONSE e 1,100 1,272 2,363 195 435
Selling and distribution expenses HERNHEER (35,878) (43,734) (54,575) (23,806) (17838)
Administrative expenses THBEH (19,167) (14,098) (11,553) (34,912) (14,039)
Expected credit losses on financial assets & REEMBHEERHR (3,309) (261) (72) = =
Other expenses EtER (444) (693) (842) (598) (1,320)
Finance costs REMK (3.358) (226) - - (219)
Profit before income tax BRET BB ATRER (30,340) 46,029 104,415 104,385 85,416
Income tax expense ERAY (1,915) (15,189) (28,001) (34,183) (24,264)
Profit for the year attributable to ADRBEEAREER
owners of the Company pisil (32,255) 30,840 76,414 70,202 61,152
Other comprehensive income Hit2EKA
Items that may be classified subsequently EEJFE#H »HEZ
1o profit or loss: BantyBEf -
- Exchange differences arising from -BRERNETBEER
translation of foreign operations EHES 841 (13) b47 (1,719) (804)
Other comprehensive income for the year  FERE 2 ERA 841 (13) 547 (1,719) (804)
Profit and total comprehensive income A2 F#EH ABLEER
for the year attributable to ENREERALE
owners of the Company (31,414) 30,827 76,961 68,483 60,348
Earnings per share GREM
- basic and diluted (RMB) EAREE (ARS) 0.3226 0.0308 0.0764 0.0812 0.0815
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EE - BERER
As at 31 December
Rt=ZA=t+-8
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ZBCBF _E-NE BN\ ZE+tF C"E-R%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETx
Total Assets EERE 499,792 508,844 503,103 444,958 222,630
Total Liabilities AERE 53,375 31,013 56,099 73,981 67044
Total Equity BEne® 446,417 477831 447,004 370,977 155,586
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